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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the

securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or

any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make

any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITREBREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to you
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 30 November 2018.

REVIEW

The Group has provided system integration and computer related
services since 2006 and continuously diversified our business to
general trading services in relation to IT services and provision of
management advice and consultancy services regarding computer
softwares and information technology. The Group provided IT
services to both private and public sectors and our customers
include banks and financial institutions, government and statutory
bodies, education institutions, IT services firms, software principals
and other small and medium enterprises.

On 22 October 2018, the Group was successfully listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”). We are proud and excited
to reach this important milestone. It was also encouraging to note
that there was approximately 8.15 times over-subscription for the
Company’s shares offered to the public.

The net proceeds raised from the Listing has strengthened the
Group’s capital position, allowing the Group to progressively
execute the business plans as disclosed in the section headed
“Future plans and use of proceeds” of the prospectus of the
Company dated 29 September 2018 (the “Prospectus”).

The Group’s revenue increased by 22.2% from approximately
RM38.9 million for the year ended 30 November 2017 to
approximately RM47.6 million for the year ended 30 November 2018.
Such increase was primarily attributable to increase in revenue
from the Group’s two largest customers from system integration and
development services for the year ended 30 November 2018, which
contributed 79.7% (2017: 70.0%) of total revenue generated by the
Group. The Group recorded a profit of approximately RM7.9 million
for the year ended 30 November 2018 as compared to a profit of
approximately RM16.5 million for the year ended 30 November
2017, mainly due to the increase in non-recurring expenses of
approximately RM11.1 million (2017: approximately RM1.5 million)
and income tax expense of approximately RM2.4 million (2017:
approximately RM71,000). Excluding these non-recurring expenses,
the profit before income tax would have become approximately
RM21.4 million for the year ended 30 November 2018 (2017:
approximately RM18.1 million).
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OUTLOOK

Following the Listing, we are confident of our future prospects
and believe that it would raise the Group’s brand awareness and
publicity on an international level and help to attract new potential
local and international customers. To enhance the quality of our
services and expand our business, we actively pursue the following
business strategies: (i) to be a major IT solution provider to the
Digital Free Trade Zone in Malaysia; (ii) to capture new growth
opportunities through our successful product, Square Intelligence;
(iii) leveraging on the business networks of the Pre-IPO Investors to
introduce IT products in the PRC into Malaysia; and diversifying our

service offerings to our customers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude
to our new shareholders, bankers, customers and business partners
for their support and trust placed in us. | would also like to thank
our staff for their tremendous effort and contribution. With our
competent management and professional teams, | believe the

Group will succeed in achieving our business goals.

Yours sincerely,

Chong Yee Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 February 2019
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an IT service provider based in Malaysia and
principally engaged in design, procurement, installation and
maintenance of customised systems application for corporate
customers. Our services mainly include system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services and maintenance

and consultancy services.

The successful listing of the Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 22 October 2018 was an important milestone for the
Group, enhancing our capital strength and reinforcing the Group’s

resources for future development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue was derived from three principal sources,
namely, system integration and development services, IT
outsourcing services and maintenance and consultancy services

which are analysed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statement.

For the year ended 30 November 2018, the Group recorded an
increase in total revenue by 22.2% to approximately RM47.6 million
(2017: approximately RM38.9 million). Details of changes in the
revenue derived from system integration and development services,
IT outsourcing services, and maintenances and consultancy

services are analysed as below.
System integration and development services

For system integration and development services, the revenue
increased by 28.4% from approximately RM34.6 million for the year
ended 30 November 2017 to approximately RM44.5 million for the
year ended 30 November 2018.

The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in
revenue recognised by Project W and Project A (as defined below)
attributable to the Group’s two largest customers, Customer A and
B respectively as set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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The Group serves as a subcontractor of Customer A to implement
a system providing portal services that allow members of a
social security organisation in Malaysia to perform application,
contribution, claim and other related activities. Project W
commenced in December 2016 and the project sum is
approximately RM71.8 million. For the year ended 30 November
2018, the Group recognised revenue of approximately RM30.2
million (2017: approximately RM26.5 million) from Project W. As at
30 November 2018, the Project W has accounted for aggregate
revenue of approximately RM56.7 million and the whole project is
expected to complete in July 2020.

The Group entered into various contracts with Customer B which
involved software integration, business process engineering solution
and CUSTPRO solution for employment insurance and services
(collectively referred to as “Project A”). Project A was completed
and the entire project sum of approximately RM7.8 million was fully
recognised during the year ended 30 November 2018.

IT outsourcing services

The revenue from IT outsourcing services remained stable at
approximately RM1.5 million for the years ended 30 November 2018
and 2017.

Maintenance and consultancy services

For maintenance and consultancy services, the revenue decreased
by 43.1% from approximately RM2.8 million for the year ended
30 November 2017 to approximately RM1.6 million for the year
ended 30 November 2018. The decrease in revenue was mainly

attributable to scale-down of projects by customers.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth a breakdown of gross profit and gross

profit margin for the years indicated:

EFREFR
TREIIFAREREENRENEZHA

Year ended 30 November
BE+—A=1+HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E— 5

RM’000 RM’000

F¥Fr BT or

Revenue g 2% 47,581 38,929
Cost of services and materials sold  FR# & 2 &8 ¥k A (23,430) (17,344)
Gross profit ES 24,151 21,585
Gross profit margin ek 50.8% 55.4%

The gross profit increased by approximately 11.9%, from
approximately RM21.6 million for the year ended 30 November 2017
to approximately RM24.2 million for the year ended 30 November
2018. The increase in gross profit was consistent with the increase

in revenue as set out above.

The gross profit margin decreased from 55.4% for the year ended
30 November 2017 to 50.8% for the year ended 30 November 2018.
Such a decrease was due to the increase in cost of services and
materials sold outran the increase in revenue. Due to increasing
purchase costs and increase in staff costs of IT specialists, the
cost of services and materials sold increased by 35.1% from
approximately RM17.3 million for the year ended 30 November 2017
to approximately RM23.4 million for the year ended 30 November
2018.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 26.6% from approximately
RM3.4 million for the year ended 30 November 2017 to
approximately RM4.4 million for the year ended 30 November
2018. The increase is primarily attributable to employee benefits

expenses.

The amount of employee benefits expenses included in
administrative expenses increased from approximately RM684,000
for the year ended 30 November 2017 to approximately
RM1,833,000 for the year ended 30 November 2018, which was

mainly due to increase in staff costs for research and development.
Finance costs

The finance costs increased slightly by approximately 6.1% from
approximately RM49,000 for the year ended 30 November 2017 to
approximately RM52,000 for the year ended 30 November 2018.
The finance costs remained stable for each of the years ended 30
November 2018 and 2017.

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses increased from approximately
RM71,000 for the year ended 30 November 2017 to approximately
RM2,414,000 for the year ended 30 November 2018. The increase
was mainly due to increase in profit of a subsidiary, Concorde
Technology Sdn. Bhd., for the year ended 30 November 2018, of

which the profit is subject to Malaysia corporate income tax.

Profit for the year

The profit for the year decreased by approximately 52.5% from
approximately RM16.5 million for the year ended 30 November 2017
to approximately RM7.9 million for the year ended 30 November
2018. Such decrease was mainly attributable to increase in

non-recurring expenses and income tax expenses.
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Excluding non-recurring listing expenses and research and
development expenses, the profit before income tax increased by
18.2% from approximately RM18.1 million for the year ended 30
November 2017 to approximately RM21.4 million for the year ended
30 November 2018, as analysed below:

MR IR T M ETFAS MRS - BRATEFA
BAHEBEZTE—+F+—A=THLEFENS
#18,100,000 T I 18.2% EHE T — N\ &F
+—A=THIEFELHF¥21,400,0007T * 5F
BT

Year ended 30 November
BEZ+—-A=1HILLEE

2018 2017
=¥ —\F It
RM’000 RM’000
FEFT HHFT
Profit before income tax & T 15 %54 Al i ) 10,266 16,604
Add: Listing expenses e EmRX 9,805 1,495
20,071 18,099

Add: Research and development a0 RS
expenses 1,313 —
21,384 18,099

Following the Listing, the Group is confident of its future prospects
and believe that it would raise the Group’s brand awareness and
publicity on an international level and help to attract new potential
local and international customers. To enhance the quality of
services and expand its business, the Group actively pursue the
following business strategies: (i) to be a major IT solution provider to
the Digital Free Trade Zone in Malaysia; (ii) to capture new growth
opportunities through its successful product, Square Intelligence;
(iii) leveraging on the business networks of the Pre-IPO Investors to
introduce IT products in the PRC into Malaysia, and diversifying its
service offerings to its customers.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 30 November 2018, the total borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately RM1.0 million (2017: approximately
RM1.1 million) which represented bank borrowings and obligations
under finance leases. Details on the average interest rate and
maturity profile of the Group’s total borrowings, including bank
borrowings and finance lease obligations, are set out in the notes
20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 November 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group was 3.2%
(2017: 27.6%). Gearing ratio is calculated based on total borrowings
divided by total equity as at the end of the financial year.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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As at 30 November 2018, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately RM30.7 million (2017: approximately RM1.9
million). The Group’s current ratio increased to approximately 3.3
times, as compared to approximately 1.1 times as at 30 November
2017, which was mainly due to the increase in bank balances and
cash attributable to the unutilised net proceeds raised by the listing
of the shares of the Company on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 22
October 2018. As at 30 November 2018, the Group’s bank balances
and cash excluding the restricted bank balances was approximately
RM33.8 million (2017: approximately RM2.8 million).

The Group’s operations are financed principally by revenue
generated from its business operation, available bank balances and
cash as well as bank borrowings. The Board will continue to follow
a prudent treasury policy in managing its bank balances and cash
and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity to ensure that the Group
is well positioned to achieve its business objectives and strategies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 November 2018, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2017: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 November 2018, the Group did not have significant capital
commitments contracted but not provided for (2017: nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the year ended 30 November 2018, the Group did not have
any significant investments (2017: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 November 2018, the Group had obtained banking facilities
on issuance of bank guarantees granted by certain banks, which
were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances of approximately
RM525,000 (2017: approximately RM762,000) as set out in note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 November 2018 and 2017, the interest-bearing borrowings
are secured by properties owned by the Group with aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RM1.3 million as set out in note
20(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at the date of this annual report, the Group did not have any
other plans for material investments and capital assets except for
those disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 30 November 2018, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies, save as disclosed in the Prospectus.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board believes that all the major risk factors relevant to the
Group have already been set out in the section headed “Risk
factors” of the Prospectus. Please refer thereto for more information.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of the business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The management
monitors our foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised by the Company from the Share Offer were
approximately RM30.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$58.6
million) (based on the final Offer Price of HK$0.62 per Offer Share
adjusted by the Downward Offer Price Adjustment). The Company
intends to apply the net proceeds on a pro rata basis for the
purposes as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds — Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus and the Price
Reduction Announcement dated 16 October 2018, which are as
follows:

—  approximately RM3.05 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$5.86 million), representing approximately 10% of the net
proceeds, for strengthening our technical team by recruiting
more IT specialists

—  approximately RM18.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$35.2 million), representing approximately 60% of the
net proceeds, for purchase of hardware and equipment for
establishment of IT infrastructure for the provision of cloud
storage and cloud computing services

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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—  approximately RM6.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$11.7 million), representing approximately 20% of the net
proceeds, for research and development of advanced and
adapted versions of our Group’s existing IT products; and

—  approximately RM3.05 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$5.86 million), representing approximately 10% of the net
proceeds, as general working capital

As at the date of this annual report, there were no changes of the
business plans from those disclosed in the Prospectus.

As at 30 November 2018, the net proceeds had been utilised as
follows:
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Amount
Net proceeds utilised Balance
FEBREFE CHAZLE g2
RM million RM million RM million
FEETT HHEET FEET
Strengthening our technical team by BB ZENRHLE A LA IR
recruiting more IT specialists B i [ Bx 3.05 — 3.05
Purchase of hardware and BEEM RREUARILEM
equipment for establishment of BHE AR - Mg
IT infrastructure for the provision i E R EE R
of cloud storage and cloud
computing services 18.30 — 18.30
Research and development of HEAEER B SRR
advanced and adapted versions B h 2 HE B R % 3 B AR
of our Group’s existing IT
products 6.10 0.52 5.58
General working capital —REEED 3.05 3.05 —
30.50 3.57 26.93
EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES BE R &HMEE

As at 30 November 2018, the Group had a total of 78 employees
(2017: 75) in Hong Kong and Malaysia. For the year ended 30
November 2018, total staff costs and related expenses of the Group
(including the Directors’ remuneration) were approximately RM7.0
million (2017: approximately RM4.7 million).

Employees’ remuneration is determined with reference to market
terms and the performance, qualifications and experience of
employees. Apart from the statutory retirement benefits and medical
benefits, the Group also provides trainings to employees to enhance
their knowledge and maintain the quality of our services.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (“Mr. Chong”), aged 37, the founder of the
Group, was appointed as the chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer and executive Director of the Company on 27 February
2018. He is mainly responsible for formulating the overall business
development strategy and planning; overseeing the Group’s
performance and management; and leading and representing the
Group in negotiation with potential business partners.

Mr. Chong is experienced in the field of system integration and
development as a software engineer. From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Chong
worked in iPower Berhad, a company engaged in system integration
based in Malaysia. In the past 11 years, Mr. Chong has been
working relentlessly to build up the Group. In particular, he has
participated in the development of NS3 and CUSTPRO, the two self-
developed IT products of the Group.

Currently, Mr. Chong serves as a director of C.I.S Integrated Sdn.
Bhd., which principally engages in provision of online home design

solutions.

Mr. Chong obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Information Technology
majoring in software engineering with honours from Multimedia
University in Malaysia in May 2003. Subsequently, he completed
three IBM professional certification programs, which are IBM
Certified Specialist DB2 and IBM Certified Database Administrator
respectively in 2004 and IBM Certified System Administrator —
Websphere Application Server Network Deployment in 2006.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

HITES

BEERAE(TERE]D 375K /AEKEZE
WA AR -_ZE-NF_A-_T+LREZERRX
RABEEEIFE THESRATES - REE
BRGIEEREBRRRBIRE  EEAKE
ZEREAREBARTEARRRARBRBLEERY
BHAETITIERS ©

ERERUGTIRMIES ZRES RFAEES
KR BEER_EE—FE_TTLFAR
R—EUSRETAEMRERFEE 2 AT
iPower Berhad ° B 11/ - EXE—ET
Wi AR E o LHE - H2MEFAEAEE Y
IR B 25 8 A A RHRE m NS3 . CUSTPRO ©

B Al - S EEMECILS Integrated Sdn. Bhd.
(FERBREBLRERARATRIZES -

EAERZZE=FHARNEERATZEEX
BEABR(RE)ELBN - TEUHEIR-
Hig R =ZHEBMEERZRE B4R
— TIN5 BT IBM Certified Specialist
DB2 2 IBM Certified Database Administrator
W KR = T TN F 5 AKIBM Certified System
Administrator — Websphere Application Server

Network Deployment °



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (“Mr. Liu”), aged 48, was appointed
as an executive Director on 8 March 2018. He is also currently
the compliance officer and an authorised representative of the
Company.

Mr. Liu has over 24 years of experience in finance and accounting.
He is currently and has been an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
0899) since April 2017 and August 2018 respectively. He is also
currently and has been the chief executive officer of Future Bright
Mining Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2212) since October 2018.
He was an independent non-executive director and the chairman of
the audit committee of Luen Wong Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8217) from March 2016 to December 2017. He was the
sales director and licensed representative of Tung Shing Securities
(Brokers) Limited during the period between September 2010 and
October 2015, and KGI Asia Limited and KGI Futures (Hong Kong)
Limited during the period between October 2004 to September
2010.

Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor's degree of Commerce from Dalhousie

University in Canada in February 1994.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (“Mr. Siah”), aged 39, was appointed as a

non-executive Director on 27 February 2018.

In 2005, he founded CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd., which focuses on, among
others, business intelligence and data warehousing, for enabling a
business to gather and analyse its data regarding specific function
areas such as finance, supply chain, human resources, sales and
marketing and customer service to provide historical, current and
predictive views of business operations and has been the chief
operating officer and a director thereof until his resignation in
February 2018. He was responsible for the operations and research
and development of CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd.. Mr. Siah is experienced in
the implementation of business intelligence, data warehousing and

banking solutions.

Currently, Mr. Siah is a director of C.I.S Integrated Sdn. Bhd. and
Rivermains Technology Sdn. Bhd..

Mr. Siah obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Engineering (Mechanical)
with honours from University of Malaya in September 2002.
Subsequently, he received an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT
Service Management in February 2005 and an ITIL Manager’s

Certificate in IT Service Management in September 2005.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Lam Pang (“Mr. Lam”), aged 49, was appointed as a non-

executive Director on 8 March 2018.

Mr. Lam has over 26 years of extensive experience in trading
between the PRC and Hong Kong, and property investment in
the PRC. He founded Stars (Holdings) Limited (now known as
Stars Pacific Limited), of which he has been the director and
has been engaged in trading business since 1992. He was the
chairman of GOME from December 2000 to April 2002 and an
executive director from September 2000 to May 2007. Afterwards,
Mr. Lam was an executive director of IR & FEBMBHAERA
7] (Shandong Jintai Group Co., Ltd), a listed company on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600385) which principally
engages in gold and jewellery trading from July 2007 to June
2013, and a director of Blossomhill Investment Limited (formerly
known as Special Fine Investment and Management Limited) from
December 2013 to October 2015. Since 2015, Mr. Lam has been
the general manager of = ERZZME AR AR (Hunan Fu Heng
Construction Development Co., Ltd.), which is principally engaged

in infrastructure and property development.

Mr. Lam currently serves as the consultants of JEIJIT{EL L
2 (Shenzhen Association of Chinese Traditional Culture Studies), #
BHEBRAERMAERESEBERIZTIEZES (Health Science and
Technology Work Committee of China Association for Promoting
International Economic & Technical Cooperation) and F B L% 5 &

@ (China pre-Qin History Society).

Mr. Lam graduated from Pui Ying Secondary School in late 1980s.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan San Ping (“Mr. Chan”), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. He is
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the

audit committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Chan was the partner of GrammyTech Limited from September
2003 to April 2013, and is the managing partner of EMP Partners
since May 2013. During the said periods, he has been responsible
for the management of the business for banking and finance
recruitment in Hong Kong and China. From July 1997 to September
2003, Mr. Chan was the managing partner of Grammy Financial
Institutions Group Limited, and his main responsibility covered the
management of the senior level recruitment business for financial
services industry in Hong Kong and North Asia. These past
and present positions have given Mr. Chan around 25 years in

recruitment of talents in the finance industry.

Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Arts with honours,
majoring in business studies from City University of Hong Kong in
1988.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr. Su Chi Wen (“Mr. Su”), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. He is
the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the

remuneration committee and audit committee.

Mr. Su has over 20 years of experience working in the IT industry.
Mr. Su has been the deputy IT director of C&C Joint Printing Co.,
(H.K.) Ltd since January 2014 and was the project manager of C&C
Joint Printing Co., (H.K.) Ltd from May 2005 to December 2013.
Prior to that, Mr. Su was the executive director of High-Growth (H.K.)
Limited from July 1997 to June 2000. From July 1995 to March
1997, Mr. Su was the system consultant of System Management

Consultancy Ltd.

Mr. Su was the founder of Sys Solutions Limited and Sys Solutions
Holdings Limited (now known as Enviro Energy International
Holdings Limited), a company formerly listed in GEM (Stock Code:
8182) since February 2003 and subsequently transferred its listing
from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1102) since December 2010. From July 2000 to May 2004, he was
the executive director and chief executive officer of Sys Solutions
Limited and Sys Solutions Holdings Limited.

Mr. Su obtained a Bachelor's degree of Commerce, majoring in
marketing from Dalhousie University in Canada in 1995. He was
awarded a certificate of digital asset management by the Advanced
Printing Technology Centre (APTEC), a subsidiary of the Hong Kong
Printers Association in 2005. In 2014, Mr. Su received an executive
diploma in digital marketing from Hong Kong Management
Association and a certificate from China Business Executives

Academy Dalian.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella (“Ms. Ho”), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. She is the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration

committee and nomination committee.

Ms. Ho has been the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 2882) since May 2017 and March 2018 respectively.
From September 2007 to February 2017, Ms. Ho served as the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Paradise Entertainment
Limited (Stock Code: 1180). Prior to that, she was the financial
controller and company secretary of Linefan Technology Holdings
Limited (now known as China Eco-Farming Limited) (Stock Code:
8166) from May 2004 to September 2007. She was the financial
manager of Recruit Holdings Limited (now known as KK Culture
Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 550) from November 2002 to August
2003 and the accounting manager of Systek Information Technology
Limited (now known as the Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 8130) from October 2001 to November 2002. These past and
present positions have given Ms. Ho over 20 years of financial and
accounting experience and extensive experience of working in the

listed companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Ho obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in Accountancy with honours
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1994. She was admitted
as members of both The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in May 1998 and May 2000 respectively.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pang Hen Yong (“Mr. Pang”), aged 38, is the chief technology
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2012 and is
responsible for all aspects of strategic IT planning, implementation,
and support as an integral component of the business plan.
He is also responsible for budgeting, design and support of all

technological issues of the Group.

Mr. Pang worked as the technical consultant for DKSH Holding
AG, also known as DiethelmKellerSiberHegner, a company listed
on the SIX Swiss Exchange (Stock Code: DKSH) from March 2007
to July 2011. From July 2011 to December 2012, he worked as the
technical consultant for GlaxoSmithKline plc, a company listed both
on the London Stock Exchange (Stock Code: GSK) and on the New
York Stock Exchange (Stock Code: GSK).

Mr. Pang obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Information Technology
with honours from Universiti Tenaga Nasional in August 2003. He
received an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service Management in
October 2012.

Mr. Chung Foo Shyn (“Mr. Chung”), aged 36, is currently
the project director of the Group since September 2013 and is
responsible for overseeing project implementation and project

management.

Mr. Chung was the project manager for Techbase Solution Sdn.
Bhd. from August 2012 to August 2013. He worked as the senior
IT specialist for iFAST Service Centre Sdn. Bhd. from May 2008 to
July 2011 and the senior java developer for Optegra Sdn. Bhd. from
November 2005 to May 2008.

Mr. Chung obtained a Bachelor's degree of Computer Science,
majoring in software engineering, with honours from University of
Malaya in August 2004.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Wong Puh Yih (“Mr. Wong”), aged 34, is the head of research
and development department of the Group. He was appointed
as the technical team of the Group on April 2014. His main
responsibility includes: i) development and design of product from
concept to specifications and implementation and ii) coordination
with internal or external engineering teams on the new process and

equipment design, scale-up, capability improvement and validation.

Mr. Wong obtained an Associate Degree in Information Technology
from New Era College in 2006. He is certified as a Sun Certified
Programmer for the Java Platform in 2010. In 2014, he completed
two IBM professional certification programs, namely IBM Certified
Database Administrator and IBM Certified Database Associate in
2014.

Ms. Lam Yat Ting (“Ms. Lam”), aged 36, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Group on 8 March 2018.

Ms. Lam has over 10 years of experience in accounting and audit.
Currently, she has been the executive director and company
secretary of Elegance Commercial and Financial Printing Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8391) since September 2018. She has
been the financial controller of Man Lee Management Limited, a
subsidiary of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 899)
since May 2018. From October 2016 to April 2018, she worked at
New World Facilities Management Company Limited, a subsidiary of
New World Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 17) where
her last position held was a finance manager. Prior to that, she
worked at a medium size C.P.A. firm from March 2008 to October

2016 where her last position held was an audit manager.

Ms. Lam obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration
in Accountancy with honours from City University of Hong Kong in
2006. She is admitted as a qualified accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The shares of the Company has been listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 22 October 2018 (the “Listing Date”). The Company
has adopted the principles and the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules.

During the period from the Listing Date and 30 November 2018 (the
“Period”), the Company had complied with the CG Code, except
where otherwise stated.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Standard of
Dealings”), as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors,
each of the Directors has confirmed that he has complied with the
Standard of Dealings from the Listing Date and up to the date of
this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 30 November

2018 and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (appointed on 27 February 2018)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (appointed on 8 March 2018)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (appointed on 27 February 2018)

Mr. Lam Pang (appointed on 8 March 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan San Ping (appointed on 19 September 2018)

Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella (appointed on 19 September 2018)

Mr. Su Chi Wen (appointed on 19 September 2018)
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Biographic details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

Under code provision A.1.8 in CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors. As at 30 November 2018, the Company has
yet to reach an agreement with an insurer and the insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the Directors has not been in
place. In February 2019, the Company has entered into a relevant

insurance policy.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance. The Board is primarily responsible for overall
business plans and strategies of the Group, the implementation
of the Group’s policies and strategies, monitoring the business
performance, internal controls and risk management as well as

supervising the management of the Group.

The Board delegates daily management, administration and
operation of the Group to the management. The delegated functions
are reviewed by the Board to ensure that they accommodate the

needs of the Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the board or as an addition to the
existing board. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his / her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the

Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include any Director
who wishes to retire and not offer himself for re-election. Any further
Directors so to retire shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment but as between persons
who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the board
diversity policy to ensure the effectiveness of the Board diversity

policy.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer

should be clearly established and set out in writing.
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Mr. Chong Yee Ping is currently the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, responsible for formulating
the overall business development strategy and planning of the
Group. In view that Mr. Chong has been responsible for the overall
management of the Group since its inception, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Chong taking
up both roles for effective management and business development.
The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision-making under our
present arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse
background and experience of the other executive director, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.
Further, the Audit Committee has free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional advisers
when it considers necessary. Therefore, the Directors consider
that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is

appropriate in such circumstance.

In order to maintain good corporate governance and to fully comply
with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board comprises
six other experienced and high-calibre individuals including one
other executive Director, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors who would be able to offer
advice from various perspectives. In addition, for major decisions of
the Group, the Company will consult appropriate Board committees
and senior management. Considering the present size and the
scope of business of the Group, we consider that it is not in the
best interest of the Company and the shareholders as a whole to
separate the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer,
because the separation would render the decision-making process
of the Company less efficient than the current structure. Therefore,
the Directors consider that the present arrangement is beneficial
to and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole and the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code

is appropriate in such circumstance.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed term.
Pursuant to the letters of appointment between the Company and
the non-executive Directors, the non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date which may be terminated by either party by giving three
months’ written notice. Every Director is subject to re-election on
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has complied with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one of them have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the GEM
Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the paragraph C.3 of CG Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors namely Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella, Mr. Chan San Ping and
Mr. Su Chi Wen. Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management system, to oversee the audit process and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board. The
Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
standards and practices adopted by the Group, and discussing
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial reporting
matters including the review of annual results and financial

statements for the year ended 30 November 2018.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the CG
Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan San
Ping, Mr. Su Chi Wen and Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella. Mr. Chan San
Ping is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors on
the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policies on such remuneration; (ii)
determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving
performance-based remuneration with reference to corporate goals

and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time.
Nomination Committee

The Company also established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the CG
Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Su Chi Wen,
Mr. Chan San Ping and Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella. Mr. Su Chi Wen is

the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to, inter
alia, make recommendations to the Board to fill vacancies on the
same. The secretary of the Company shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from
Board members for consideration by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members. The factors which would be
used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate for Director include, inter alia,
reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as Board member, diversity of the Board, and such
other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s

consideration and approval.
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BOARD MEETINGS

For a regular Board meeting, at least 14 days’ notice will be given
to the Board members. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. An agenda and board
papers of the regular meeting are sent to all Directors in advance
within reasonable time and all Directors are free to contribute and
share their views at the meeting. Minutes of all Board and committee
meetings are circulated to the Directors and open for inspection by
the Directors.

The Articles of the Company contains provisions requiring the
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving any contract or arrangement or
any other proposal in which such Directors or any of their close
associates have a material interest.

During the Period, no Board meeting, Audit Committee meeting,
Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination Committee meeting
and general meeting was held, as the Company was newly listed on
22 October 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Listing Rules, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
November 2018, the Group has selected suitable accounting
policies in accordance with international accounting principles and
applied them consistently. A statement by the joint auditors of the
Company about its responsibilities for the financial statements is
set out in the independent joint auditors’ report contained in this
annual report. The Directors adopt the going concern approach in
preparing the consolidated financial statements and are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 under Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. For the year ended 30 November 2018, all Directors
and a majority of the senior management of the Group received
induction trainings from the Company’s Hong Kong legal adviser
in respect of the ongoing obligations, duties and responsibilities
of Directors of publicly listed companies in Hong Kong under the
Companies Ordinance, the SFO and the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors
to refresh their duties and responsibilities. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by legal
advisers and / or any appropriate institutions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Yat Ting is the company secretary of the Company. Please
refer to the section headed "Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for the biographical details of the
company secretary of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company engaged Mazars CPA Limited and Mazars LLP as its
joint auditors for the year ended 30 November 2018. The analysis
of the joint auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 30 November
2018 is set out as follow:
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RM’000
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accountants in relation to the listing of Company’s GEHAD 2 EE R

shares 1,166

Tax compliance services H%E BHRB 106

Total “BEt 1,712
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has responsibility for maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit
Committee to review the Group’s risk management and internal

control matters annually.

For the year ended 30 November 2018, the Group did not have
an internal audit function as required under code provision
C.2.5 of the CG Code. The Company has engaged an external
independent internal control consultant to review the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
reviewed the internal control review report issued by the external
independent consultant on the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems in respect of the year ended 30 November
2018 and considered that they are effective and adequate. The
Board assessed the effectiveness of internal control systems by
considering the internal control review report and reviews performed

by the Audit Committee and concurred the same.

THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SUCH MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings shall at all time have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

To ensure that the shareholders and potential investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, the Company has
established several channels to communicate with the shareholders

as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the Company at

www.mindtelltech.com;

(i) periodic announcements are published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii)  corporate information is made available on the Company’s

website; and

(iv) annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum
for the shareholders to make comments and exchange views

with the Directors and senior management.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and
the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by

post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

To comply with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company adopted the
amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company on 19 September 2018 and it took effect on the
Listing Date. A copy of the amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company is posted on the Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at www.mindtelltech.com. During the Period, there has
been no change in the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of

Association.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of Mindtell Technology
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 November 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engage in the provision of system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services and maintenance
and consultancy services. Details of its principal subsidiaries as
at 30 November 2018 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated

financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion of the Group’s achievement of its business objectives
as stated in the section headed “Business” of the Prospectus
and future business developments of the Group are set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management

Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

The risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set
out in the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report. In addition, various financial risks have been

disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman lIslands on 27 February 2018.
Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in
preparation for the listing of shares of the Company on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding
company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Details
of the Reorganisation are set out in the section headed “History,

Development and Reorganisation” of the Prospectus.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 November 2018 and
the financial positions of the Company and the Group as at that date
are set out in the audited consolidated financial statements on page

56 to 131 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company by way of cash or shares. Any
distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”) and the distribution shall
achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s earnings per share, the reasonable
return in investment of the investors and the shareholders in order to
provide incentive to them to continue to support the Group in their
long-term development, the financial conditions and business plan

of the Group, and the market sentiment and circumstances.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any

specific periods.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 30 November 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last three financial years is set out on page 132 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements in this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 30 November 2018, the revenue attributable
to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
63.4% (2017: 68.0%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 90.7% (2017: 91.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

During the year ended 30 November 2018, the costs incurred in
respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
40.8% (2017: 34.1%) of the Group’s total cost of services and
materials sold incurred and the costs incurred in respect of the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 72.7%
(2017: 73.9%) of the Group’s total cost of services and materials

sold incurred.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
Shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more
of the issued Shares of the Company) had any beneficial interest in
any the Group’s major customers or suppliers during the year ended
30 November 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 30 November 2018 are set out in note

12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 30 November 2018 are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended
30 November 2018.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 30 November 2018 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 60 and in note

24 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 November 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to

approximately RM20.8 million.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 November 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders of the
Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 19 September 2018. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to grant an option to subscribe for shares
of the Company (the “Option”) to eligible persons as defined in the
Share Option Scheme as incentives or rewards for their contribution

to the Group.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from the date of its
adoption on 19 September 2018. Since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme and up to 30 November 2018, no Option has been
granted by the Company. As of the date of this annual report, the
Company had 39,000,000 shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme (representing 10% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report).
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” of the section headed “Statutory
and General Information” of the Prospectus.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save and except for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked
agreement that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or (ii) requires the Company enter into any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares, was entered into by the
Company during the year ended 30 November 2018 or subsisted at
the end of the year.

DONATION

During the year ended 30 November 2018, the Group did not make
any charitable donations (2017: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company,
after deduction of underwriting fees and other expenses payable
by the Company in connection with the Listing, were approximately
RM30.5 million. Details of the use of proceeds are set out in the
section headed *“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 30 November

2018 and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (appointed on 27 February 2018)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (appointed on 8 March 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (appointed on 27 February 2018)

Mr. Lam Pang (appointed on 8 March 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan San Ping (appointed on 19 September 2018)
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella (appointed on 19 September 2018)

Mr. Su Chi Wen (appointed on 19 September 2018)
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DIRECTORS

Biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (“Articles”),
Directors appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, the Directors shall hold office only until the forthcoming
general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

at the general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date and shall continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to termination provisions
therein and in the Articles.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date which
may be terminated by either party by giving three months’ written

notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emolument of the Directors and five individuals
with highest emoluments are set out in note 8 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the contracts and agreement relating to the
Reorganisation and save as disclosed in this annual report, no
transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company or
an entity associated with him has or had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year ended
30 November 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
which he / she may sustain or incur in or about execution of duties
of his / her office or otherwise in relation thereto provided that
such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or

dishonesty committed by the Director.

As at 30 November 2018, the Company has yet to reach an
agreement with an insurer and the insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors has not been in place. In February

2019, the Company has entered into a relevant insurance policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that save and except for the deviation
from code provision A.1.8 and A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company
has met the code provisions set out in the CG Code and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules. A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group has endeavored to comply
with the laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness

towards environmental protections among our staff and employees.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2018, to the best of knowledge
of the Directors, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a

significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

FULLY EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2018, the group entered into
a tenancy agreement with Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, which is set out in
paragraph (a) of note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
The said transaction constituted a fully exempt continuing
connected transaction of the group. Save for the aforesaid, during
the year ended 30 November 2018, the Directors are not aware
of any related party transactions as disclosed in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements which constituted a non-exempt
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction of the
Group under the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 November 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFQ”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be recorded in the register referred therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares or underlying shares of the Company:

EERFETRAEBREAQAREEH
ZEZBRMD  HERORESFZERRK
RE

RZE—N\F+—A=1+H EEREQAEE
TRABRARBIREEEEE(ERREEE
PIEE 671 B & 5 REE KO F A5 RAERG L)
EXVE) 2B’k - BRSO RESFF - HH(a)
BIREELFREGENEXVIBE7 R8N PAS
RARREZ T2 UK R 2 (b) A RFIR
BESREEDE 35215 BECRKIEREZ
TRz EEsAR  sl(c) WREGEM £
HAFE 546 E5.67RBMNEANT REBRMZ
SRR T

RAEDXFARGIEERDZRE

Percentage of
the Company’s

Capacity and Number of issued share
Name of Director Notes nature of interest shares interested capital
KATERITRE
BEEnA Mzt SOREZEEE EERZEZROHE BB
Mr. Chong Yee Ping (1) Interests of controlled 196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
corporation and person
acting in concert
$EE A RELEERER R —BITBAL
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (1) Interests of controlled 196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
corporation and person
acting in concert
o ERAE S A LRSI —BITBAL
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James Beneficial owner 38,220,000 (L) 9.8%
BB EE BB A
Mr. Lam Pang Beneficial owner 38,220,000 (L) 9.8%
RIS 5% A EmEBE A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(continued)

Long position in shares or underlying shares of the Company:
(continued)
Notes:

(1) Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong
Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King
Nordic Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares representing 25.2% of the
total issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Takeovers Code)
as confirmed by them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping,
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited is
deemed to be interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate Edge
Limited and King Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO.

2) The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and / or any of their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and /
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO or the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” and “Share Option Scheme” above, or
any of its subsidiaries or associated corporations, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their respective spouse and children under 18
years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the
shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any of its associated corporations at any time during the year ended
30 November 2018.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

EEREFRETHRAEBREARARE AR
ZEZ2BRMD  HERORESFZESER
RE &)

REXRAROIEERG ZRA(F)

Hist

(1)  Delicate Edge 1 8 BBt 2 EBm A * 1T
King Nordic B3 #71# £ £ £ & Em A ° Delicate
Edge X King Nordic % B #F & 98,280,000 /&
17 WA RE]E BTIRAABRE25.2% ©

FAIEEEAR L R S EEF R FER—
HITEA L (AW FEFRIE T T %2 HFE)
Bt - RIFEHFRBE KD - $EEESEE - H R
F 4~ Delicate Edge J King Nordic % B ##2
A RDelicate Edge K King Nordic& # # & .2
196,560,000 R 17+ 1 5 # 7

(2)  FEILIEARFREFZRE -

BREXFIEBREEN RZZ—NF+—A=+
H BMEEFERAAREZTHRAEBRFEE
BB ARARR/SREFABEEE(FE
BES KA EEGIE XV ED) Z % - MEERD &
BEHFRHEAAREBESFREEHIZE 35215EH
RARBRRZIGH s 2 B MRz EfEz
wKE - RIREESRBREROIE XV E K GEM E
MHRABEMG AR R RERATZ R BAR

EEBARDHES 2 EF

BREXEZEERIZBITBRABRARRLEM
BB 2By - R MMEF 2R AR
K[R8 MBS IEESN  BE-F—\
F+—A=TBLFEAEAKRE  ARFRE
Efa Y 8 X B Sk ELARES R B 9 B AT LA & B -
FEERARAEZTRAR(BREAEAZE
BRARBI8 5 F ) BBEARRRHEM
*HHBF/%EEZH&@EHEEﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁz%iﬁ%%ﬂ
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Interests of substantial and other shareholders in the shares

and underlying shares:

Capacity and

SRS

FTERORAQARG RERAR G 2%
BmMKE

FTERHMBRRNR G RAERKR G 2 EE

Number of shares

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Name of Director Notes nature of interest interested capital
AATEBITRA
EEgE Mz BSORERMEE mEEEZROEE BRBEDHT
Delicate Edge Limited (1) Beneficial owner and person 196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
acting in concert
BEnBEBEAR—BITHAL
King Nordic Limited (1) Beneficial owner and person 196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
acting in concert
BERBEEAR—BITHALT

Notes: Hat -

(1) Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong (1) Delicate Edge i #Z HR t £ 2 EEm A M

Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned King Nordic di#i#### 55 £ = E & w #E A ° Delicate
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King Edge X King Nordic % B #F & 98,280,000 &
Nordic Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares representing 25.2% of the 7 AR AE FITIRAARRE25.2% °
total issued share capital of the Company.
Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in FAEEE R ST E RGPS L EEER  FEAB—
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Takeovers Code) BITEIA L (AW SEFRIE T 772 58,2 5% )
as confirmed by them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Bt - RIEZEFRBEEG - EERFEE - FEF
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited is 55 4£ « Delicate Edge KX King Nordic % B # 42
deemed to be interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate Edge A RDelicate Edge X King Nordic& # # 5.2
Limited and King Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO. 196,560,000 fiR R 17 H B #Ews °

(2)  The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company. (2) FEILIEXRFRGFZRE -

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2018, the Company br EXXFRREEEN  EFWTMBE@MEMAL

has not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or (ARREBEREBTHRABBRINRKR=_Z—NF

chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions

in the
to be
and 3

shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

T— A=+t HBEBERARR R AR T %
BRBEEFRMEGIEXVBE2REIDALL
BXARARBRE 2 BEIAR - LRENR
BES RERIIE I KRR T ERELAFE
ZBREMZEEIAR °
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company
nor their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) had any interest in any other companies as at 30 November
2018 which may, directly or indirectly compete with the Group’s
business.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicated Edge Limited
and King Nordic Limited, being the controlling shareholders (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company, have
entered into a deed of non-competition dated 19 September 2018
in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Details
of the Deed of Non-Competition was set out in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied with by Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang,
Delicated Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited up to the date of
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules since
the Listing Date and up to the latest practicable date prior to the

issue of this annual report.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

EREWN

RER - BB X7 A BN AR EERE KT
BEARMORB CERRITRAEL °

BE R

BMEESRANRAEERRAFESESAZHBHE
AERRGEM EMHRAR=_FT—NF+—A
=+H8 R eEAEEESEENMEENR
F 2 E AR A A T A4

THFRE

48 H W St 4 - # 88 #F %% 4 - Delicate Edge
Limited & King Nordic Limited (BIASR &5 %
BRE(EERGEM EMARAD )BT VHBAA T
—NFAATNBUEARRAZHEAZTHFZ
BUTHEFRIE]) - EATHEFREZFBEHN
BREIR BT IR R 2 BR | — & -

BEERNFREY  ARABULFRTEFER
RSP IE R ERER MRS AE - HIRFLE
Delicate Edge Limited [z King Nordic Limited
BESTTA P RFRIEIA N ZAGE

NBRERETEMN

ERARRAFRABENMBESHA - NAF
WEH BRBEGEMLETRE - RARMGREH
RRABEBETRARRIITIE °



INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company, VBG Capital
Limited (“VBG”), during the period from the Listing Date to 30
November 2018, save as (1) VBG'’s participation as the sole sponsor
in relation to the Listing; (2) VBG’s participation as one of the joint
bookrunners and joint lead managers in relation to the Listing; and
(8) the compliance adviser agreement entered into between the
Company and VBG, neither VBG nor its Directors, employees or
close associates had any interest in relation to the Group which is
required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
November 2018 were jointly audited by Mazars CPA Limited,
Certified Public Accountants of Hong Kong and Mazars LLP, Public
Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapore. A resolution
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited and Mazars LLP as
joint auditors of the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As from 30 November 2018 to the date of this annual report, save
as disclosed herein, the Board is not aware of any significant events

that have occurred which require disclosure herein.

On behalf of the board

Mr. Chong Yee Ping

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 February 2019

ERER &R

ERRRERERERBREERAR(ERDA
e BLMEHE—ZT-N\F+—-—HA=1+BH
B BR(ERMLETREBREREA  QER
FEMREES —BHERSEIRARBFEER
BWMA + RQ)ARREZRFTL & HEER
N ERNEEE BEERETHEAGER
BEEBASBEAREGEM EHHRIE6A.321F
HMEARB) 2 EfH#E -

BB ED

(ZEE - \FT-A=THILFEZREWH
WRELABTBAESHMTERR(FR) &5
BRI AT AR AR R I R RS A ISEAR
BEAR S MEBAARER - BRARFRE
ERFAFAS LREFWERTERR(EE)
SEMEBMERARLIBEEERAETARES
BD RGP AR R BB FEAZ AN 2 R TR -
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

R R T

MAZARS

To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Mindtell Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 131,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 November 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 November 2018, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Joint Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

H Mindtell Technology Limited
ERRR
(RESFHEFMAK T HRIA])
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AR ZBMEEZINEANECEZ131H
Mindtell Technology Limited ([&2AF] 1) & E
MEAR(GEBAIEEE]) 2REFBERE - It
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B VB R BT R

To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

H Mindtell Technology Limited
ERRR
(RESFHEFMK T2 HRIAE])

BEREFASEE

RBAR R BE 2 SR AL - BREZEES
HEMEZAME GV BRRMEE/EE
ZEE - RAEERERGAVBRRLLATR
SBDREZEFER  RAATEHREEERT
BREBR -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

HEEZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EARELPNNEERBAREZER

Revenue and expenses recognition under the percentage of completion method

RIET T B HEZ Was KGR

The Group’s revenue is principally generated through the
Group’s (i) system integration and development services,
(ii) IT outsourcing services and (iii) maintenance and
consultancy services.

EREZWRFESER BEEEZ () ZRES MAERY
(i) B FRHR NI BR 75 K (i) 418 SR B R IR AG = 4 o

In respect of system integration and development services
and consultancy services, the Group recognises contract
revenue and costs based on the percentage of completion
method with reference to the work performed to date as a
percentage of total estimated service costs of the contract
based on the management’s experience.
HREGEERABERBUARERRETS - ESERETT
BAWERRE MG EKAE  K2EERE 2 KBAETE
SERITIEZ A NIRRT R AFLBZA DL

Our procedures, among others, included:
BPZEF(EPaIE)RE -

a) obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the Group’s key internal controls over contract
revenue recognition including the control over
recording work done, invoicing and cash receipts;
TERREHE BEREHAHNEHERAZ FERNIEZE(E
ERCERTTR T - BREBESWIR) 2 8% 2Rt - #
TRBIERTAN

b) challenging the reasonableness of the basis and
assumptions of estimated total contract costs;
EREFT ORI RRZEERRREEAE
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

R R T

To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEELERE

H Mindtell Technology Limited
TRRR
(RESFHEFMK T2 HRA])

AREREEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMRELPNATEEEEERERER

Revenue and expenses recognition under the percentage of completion method

RIET T B 5 L2 W as RG> R

The total revenue recognised under the percentage of
completion method for the year ended 30 November 2018
amounted to approximately Malaysia Ringgit (“RM”) 43.8
million (2017: approximately RM25.1 million).
BE—Z-)\F+-A=THILFE BRETIADHERR
ZRWHEAREE([5E])43,800,000t(ZFE—+F - 4773
525,100,000 ) °

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter
because the amounts involved are significant and
significant management judgement is required in
estimating the contract costs which may have an impact
on percentage of completion of the service contracts and
the corresponding profit or loss taken.
HMEER LR FBERTEEREFEER  REARSRCHEE
R - BEGHATRE RS el 2 B AL RABEE R ER T &
AR ATERETRE HE -

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

c)

comparing actual total contract costs incurred to
estimated total contract costs of contracts completed
during the year, on a sample basis, to assess the
reasonableness of management’s estimation;
MEEBRFANETKANZMIELEERES R AEER
EEr AN AEE  UREREERAREARE

performing arithmetical check on the calculation of
percentage of completion, on a sample basis, based
on the schedule prepared by the management with
information including contract sum, estimated total
contract costs and contract costs incurred (the
“Schedule”); and

BREEBEANBZANTE  HASONETERERERN
BRAMRHZEER(EER]) BRI ADLEER
HETHEEERE R

verifying key terms in contracts (including contract
sum, deliverables timetable and milestones),
estimated total contract costs and contract costs
incurred set out in the Schedule, on a sample basis,
to the respective signed contracts, approved cost
budgets and relevant supporting documents of the
contract costs incurred respectively.
DRMEREERERME S HHE - HEHEORARE
BERAHAKNTEEEREZEGA  KEHKARTEE KE
B & BB AN SR XA
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To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEELEE

Recognition of expenses for the initial listing of the Group

'y BEEEAXLTHE

Relevant costs incurred for the initial listing of the shares of
the Company are allocated and classified among (i) profit
or loss as listing expenses, and (ii) equity as a reduction
of share premium upon the capitalisation issue, on the
basis that whether the costs are (a) costs for the Company
to obtain the listing status, or (b) incremental costs for
the Company to raise additional funds from the issue of
new shares. Such allocation of costs involved significant
judgement of the management.
BRETEEZBERAZ DB RS BTRESAEBKENES
A ERBER EMA 2 KA (i) AR R ARBITHRMNSE
SHEINE@ 2 EEBRAH()ER LM X 285 & (i) AR E
MEREBETR RN GEZERERE -

During the year ended 30 November 2018, costs
attributable to obtain the listing status of approximately
RM9.8 million (2017: approximately RM1.5 million) and
RM5.3 million (2017: Nil) were charged to profit or loss
and recognised in equity as a reduction of share premium,
respectively.
REBEEZZ—/\F+—A=TBIFEER LT EEKA
#4551 9,800,000 T (= F — £ 4F - 4.8/ #1,500,0007T)
K f5%5,300,000t( ZFE—+F - ) D RlsE AB&m RIERE
RGO & BRI R o

We have identified the above matter as a key audit matter
because the amounts involved are significant and the
classification and allocation of relevant costs incurred

involves a significant degree of management judgement
and therefore is subject to an inherent risk of error.

BMERS LR EFERTEERER  RARSREHEE
R BMEEZEERAZ D BRARSRERREE ZEEE
HE - REXERZEBRRRRE

H Mindtell Technology Limited
ERRR
(RESFHEFMK T2 HRIAE])

BRFXSE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMRBEGPNNEERBRAREREE

Our procedures, among others, included:
B2 EF (EPaiE)RE -

a)

obtaining an understanding of and enquiring of the
management on the bases of classification and
allocation of the relevant costs and assessing the
reasonableness of these bases with reference to the
applicable accounting standards and guidelines; and
THREAERESAMBRAZ D ERDEEE - WaT
HZEL2EZEAGHEAIRESIZEERTERE &

checking samples of items that made up the total
costs incurred for the initial listing of the shares of
the Company to invoices and agreements to confirm
the nature of the items and checking whether
these items have been correctly classified and
allocated according to the bases determined by the
management.

mmEREEK BE/RRMDEXRLETEEKAEREZIA
BzBRNGH WHEREB2ME - YReEHEBER
EERREEBEECEERITRO BRI -
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To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2018 annual report of the Company, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our joint auditors’

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGE WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

H Mindtell Technology Limited
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(RESFHEFMK T2 HRA])

Hit g

BERFAESAHHEHMENAR  HEHER
BERR T \FEHMHER - ELTRIER
B BRI LA E Bt S M BRRHA
=

K FERBEIAR A MR ERZBRLTE
EEMER BT IR BEREMERA 2R

=
4R o

IEZEAMBERERMS - NEFEZHRE 2 BT
EHEEMER  XFEBEMERA SRR
B BHRRBEEDT B ZRMEEZDRSETT
PRS2 BRI B BEARHE R - iR AIERFTE
T2 TYEMAE A ER HIRE AR - B
RPERBRULEE - S E - 4B EZEEN L
BEMERATER -

ESRAREREHGRSUBERRZER
BERREFAEREREHEREEERE M 2B

B Eﬂﬁt&iﬁﬁﬂ RBEB A BEH 2 HER
T BEREEEATZEAMB®RE  WHE
ERARFRETFEHREGFRERMERZE
REERPRIL 2 SR A M SRR T 2 B B RSP B
8& -

RERGEMBREN  EF/E5TE 55H
RELEZN  BEABRFEKLE 22BN
HA)REAFECERSTEN BRIFEESH
B BEEEFRLELLE  SBIEEMER
WERFER -

BRER

NN

BEEE EEBEZMBR

DH
R

=

—SH
Hio
o



\
!

INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPQRT
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To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
a joint auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

H Mindtell Technology Limited
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPQRT
B R BET R S

To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our joint auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our joint auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our joint auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

%)

interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong

42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

25 February 2019

The engagement director of
Mazars CPA Limited on the
audit jointly resulting in this
independent joint auditors’

report is:

She Shing Pang
Practising Certificate number:
P05510

Mazars LLP

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants of
Singapore

135 Cecil Street

#10-01 MYP Plaza

Singapore 069536

25 February 2019

The engagement partner of
Mazars LLP on the audit

jointly resulting in this

independent joint auditors’

report is:

Tan Chee Tyan

/1

N
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Year ended 30 November ZU‘IB' ﬁ:l:z/:ﬁ;' —JVE+—A é-f— =4

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Hat T T HMFoT
Revenue Iy & 4 47,581 38,929
Cost of services and materials sold  BR#& K& 2 & #£IEk Z< (23,430) (17,344)
Gross profit EF 24,151 21,585
Other income H g A 5 324 —
Administrative expenses TEEX (4,352) (3,437)
Finance costs RbE AR 6 (52) (49)
Listing expenses ishil:53 (9,805) (1,495)
Profit before income tax BRET BB AR 6 10,266 16,604
Income tax expenses R fif > 9 (2,414) (71)
Profit for the year FEERN 7,852 16,533
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wk — _
Total comprehensive income for FEXEBAWES
the year 7,852 16,533
Earnings per share, basic and BREMN(EXREE)
diluted (RM cents) (FED) 10 2.75 6.06

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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At 30 November 2018 R=F—\F+—HA=+H
N
PLRE:] 2017
—Z2-N\£ Tt
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Hiet BT EMT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment b Y S 12 1,578 1,728
Intangible assets mILEE 13 129 391
1,707 2,119
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e SR IE 15 5,065 11,188
Gross amounts due from contract JEWRA H BRI
customers 16 4,658 1,280
Due from directors JEEEKIE 17 — 7,782
Restricted bank balances SR FIRITEE R 18 525 762
Bank balances and cash IRTTAEBRIR S 33,784 2,777
44,032 23,789
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RkE MR FRIE 19 10,339 5,306
Gross amounts due to contract JERNEHEFFIEETE
customers 16 57 15,582
Income tax payables FETERIS R 2,038 23
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE 20 894 928
Obligations under finance leases BMEHERME 21 24 22
13,352 21,861
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At 30 November 2018 R=Z— \&+—H=+H

PLRE:] 2017

—Z2-N\£ Tt

Notes RM’000 RM’000

Kt BT ST

Net current assets REBEEFRE 30,680 1,928

Total assets less current liabilities REERRBEE 32,387 4,047
Non-current liabilities FkRBER

Deferred tax liabilities BREBIEAE 22 9 7

Obligations under finance leases RMERESE 21 106 129

115 136

NET ASSETS BEERE 32,272 3,911
Capital and reserves EAXR G

Share capital &N 23 2,067 —

Reserves e 30,205 3,911

TOTAL EQUITY B 32,272 3,911

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 131 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25

February 2019 and signed on its behalf by

Chong Yee Ping

EEIR
Director

EZ

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

FEEAE 1B AMBHEEMBREAR_-F—N
F_A-tTRAREE=SHAERKETE XA
TIEERREE

Liu Yan Chee James

2285
Director

EE
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Year ended 30"November 21518 Ez T 7\¢‘|’ B=tHEIt5E
Reserves
&
Accumulated
Share Share Capital profits
capital premium reserve (losses) Total
B BREE EXf@E REHN(ER) @t
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
F8TFT G¥TFT FEFT ST G¥FT
(Note 23) (Note 25(a)) (Note 25(b))
(Wzt23)  (W##25(a)  (HaE25(b)
At 1 December 2016 RZZ—R"E+=A—H — — 1,201 6,570 7,771
Profit for the year and total EEREMEEER2EE
comprehensive income for W
the year — — — 16,533 16,533
Transactions with owners: BEBANETZRS
Contributions and distributions BRI
Dividends (Note 11) RE(HE11) = = — (20,434) (20,434)
Additional capital contribution ER—ENBRRZRR
made by the then BINEE
shareholders of a subsidiary — — 41 — 41
Total transactions with owners HEFAETZRZHE — — 4 (20,434) (20,393)
At 30 November 2017 R-B-+%
+-A=+A = = 1,242 2,669 3,911
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HE ==

N\ ONA =

TED STATEM@}T OF CHAN

THRLEFE

Reserves
ke

Accumulated
Share Share Capital profits
capital premium reserve (losses)
B2 R EE BEXffE RiDER(BE)
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BETT FEFr BYTT FEFT V-1
(Note 23) (Note 25(a)) (Note 25(b))
(WiF23)  (Hfi2s5a)  (Bi25(b)
At 1 December 2017 —Z—+F+-A—H — — 1,242 2,669 3,911
Profit for the year and total EERIREEZEA

comprehensive income for the Yizs

year — — — 7,852 7,852
Transactions with owners: BREAETZRS
Contributions and distributions & RAE
Issue of share capital at MR AR T RA

incorporation (Note 23(i)) (17 23(i) — — — - -
Capital contribution made by the EHRAREEFREEE

Pre-IPO Investors (as defined 2 EE

in Note 23(iii)) (EZ 232 23(ii) — — 3,710 — 3,710
Arising from the Reorganisation — EAFES (M)

(Note) - - - - -
Capitalisation Issue (Note 23(v)) AL B1T(H1:£23(v)) 1,447 (1,447) - - -
Issue of new shares by ways of ~ ME&ERAREEZHR

placing and public offer BATHRND

(Note 23(vi)) (Hiz23(vi) 620 35,487 — - 36,107
Transaction costs attributable to ~ Z{THRHEEZR S

issue of new shares AR — (5,308) — - (5,308)
Dividends (Note 11) BRE(HaE11) - — - (14,000) (14,000)
Total transactions with owners HEEBAETZRZAE 2,067 28,732 3,710 (14,000) 20,509
At 30 November 2018 RZB-N\F

+-A=+8 2,067 28,732 4,952 (3,479) 32,272

* Represent amount less than RM1,000.

* REEWD

RE%1,0007T °

Note: As part of the Reorganisation, the Company issued new share capital
for the acquisition of the 100% equity interest of Excel Elite (as defined
in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements) (as detailed in
Note 23(iii) to the consolidated financial statements) and Excel Elite
paid a total consideration of RM6 for the 100% equity interest of
Mixsol, Concorde and Tandem (as defined in Notes 9 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements) held by the ultimate controlling Rizs
parties in March 2018.

Biat - EREM—HH - AR A BHITHIRN 1E U Excel
Elite 2 (E & R A MWK 14) 8 2 BRAE
(B RimA BB IRK M T 23(iii)) & Excel Elite 7
ZE-N\FZAXNEREFTE TIAMEREREK
#LIERR 75458 Mixsol » Concorde & Tandem (FE &
BT IRRA 5 O [ 14) 2 2 EPARAE -

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZ—Z— \F+—A=1+HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RM’000 RM’000
-1 b ST
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEY
Profit before income tax B FT1S %1 A1 2 A 10,266 16,604
Adjustments for: LTHEBEL AR -
Amortisation 5 262 291
Depreciation e 158 278
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREBHEZEBRE
equipment —_ 250
Interest income FlEWA (251) —
Interest expenses FBERAX 52 49
Cash flows from operations before REELSBHHIZEERERE
movements in working capital 10,487 17,472
Change in working capital: KEESEE)
Trade and other receivables B 5 & HAth FE Y 5k IH 6,123 (6,321)
Gross amounts due from contract JEW A O R FFRIABEE
customers (3,378) 1,904
Restricted bank balances SRR BIRITAE R 237 (427)
Trade and other payables B 5 I FE IR 4,753 1,857
Gross amounts due to contract BN EHNRFRIRREE
customers (15,525) 15,133
Cash generated from operations SEELECES 2,697 29,618
Income tax paid BEATFTSH (397) (70)
Net cash from operating activities RETHEEZHESTFE 2,300 29,548
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of property, plant and EEYE  MERERE
equipment (8) (95)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYE « ¥R R RE RS
and equipment FIH — 3
Additions to intangible assets NEEFEE - (238)
Interest received B UF B 251 —
Net cash from (used in) investing REFBHFRE(FIA)ZREFE
activities 243 (330)
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RM’000 RM’000
BT BT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Issue of share capital BT —* =
Additional capital contribution made by BB AR 2R
the then shareholders of a subsidiary HINEE — 41
Additional capital contribution by the Pre- BARHEERIREE(TEL
IPO Investors (as defined in Note 23(iii))  Htat 23(iii)) VEHE 2 BEINTE 3,710 —
Proceeds from issuance of new shares MARRIRG EMETHRO 2
in connection with the listing of the ZECE/ O
Company’s shares 36,107 —
Payment of share issuance expenses SRDETER (5,308) —
Repayment to directors BEESHA (15,528) (34,132)
Advance from directors BEER 9,590 7,466
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings {EZEFt EEE (34) (40)
Repayment of obligations under finance EEmEHERT
leases (21) (26)
Interest paid 2RFE (52) (49)
Net cash from (used in) financing RETBRE (A REFE
activities 28,464 (26,740)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRREEB/Y2EMFE
equivalents 31,007 2,478
Cash and cash equivalents at the REMOZEESRBRESEEY
beginning of the reporting period 2,777 299
Cash and cash equivalents at the end REPRZBEESRBRSEEY -
of the reporting period, represented BRITHEBERE
by bank balances and cash 33,784 2,777

* Represent amount less than RM1,000.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

*RERSBELREE1,0007T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E B R MR

Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Mindtell Technology Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman lIslands on 27 February 2018. The Company’s
shares were listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 22 October 2018 (the
“Listing”). The address of the Company’s registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P. O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place
of business is changed from 27th Floor, Neich Tower, 128
Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong to Unit 1802, 18/F.,
Ruttonjee House, Ruttonjee Centre, 11 Duddell Street, Central,
Hong Kong. The Group’s headquarter is situated at B-7-7,
Sky Park @ One City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya,
Selangor, Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding
company. The Company together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of system
integration and development services, IT outsourcing services

and maintenance and consultancy services.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
carried out by the Group in preparation for the listing of
shares of the Company on GEM of the Stock Exchange, the
Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group on 13 September 2018. Details of
the Reorganisation are as set out in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” of the section headed “History, Development
and Reorganisation” to the prospectus issued by the Company
dated 29 September 2018 (the “Prospectus”).

The Reorganisation involved the combination of a number
of entities under common control before and after the
Reorganisation. The Group is therefore regarded as a
continuing entity resulting from the Reorganisation, as there
has been a continuation of the risks and benefits to the
ultimate controlling parties (i.e. Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr.
Siah Jiin Shyang) that existed immediately prior to and after
the Reorganisation. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 November 2018 (and the
comparative information for the year ended 30 November
2017) have been prepared using the principles of the merger
accounting.

RAERREREE

Mindtell Technology Limited ([N &]])
N-E-NE-A-++tEEHEES
MK AEREERAA - AR AR
MRZZE—NFTAZTZ=ZREBEHH
aRGAAER QR GEM £
([Eml) e ARBIZMPFRE 2 iR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P. O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands * EX E& ¥ M HE
BEFELITE128 R FERE27EEN
BEBTREEZFNE 1 REIEFLER
JERE 18 1802 F o AN& H 2 B F L 1
B-7-7, Sky Park @ One City, Jalan USJ
25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor,
Malaysia °

ARBZEBEBREERRA - AR
AEREMBAR (MBI AEE]) T 2K
ERUAGES RAERE - BRI
HIBRS - DA e 4 1& R BE R AR

BIBAREEAEEHA R ARG R
GEMEmmETcEBEHA(EA]) -
RABRZZE—NFNAT=BKABRE
ERAEEZ B AR ZERAR - EMHE
ZHBHIRARARZZE—NFNA
ZTNABHBEZBRER(ERER ]
[ BEREHE|—EEH] -

BAREP kA HREARILDE KR ZGIH
ETER FAEEREARBRAFER
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BEME A KBS E) TE S 2 B
KM EATFE - Bt - AEEBRE—F
—NEF+—A=tTRIFEZHEUBR
REBE_T—tF+—HA=1TBLFE
ZHBER) DRAa et RAIGH -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows of the Group for the years ended 30 November 2018
and 2017 have been prepared on the basis as if the current
group structure has been in existence throughout the relevant
years, or since their respective dates of incorporation
or establishment, where there is a shorter period. The
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at
30 November 2017 has been prepared to present the assets
and liabilities of the companies now comprising the Group as
if the group structure has been in existence at that date.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual IFRSs, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) and all amounts have been rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RM’000”), unless otherwise

indicated.

The Group has consistently applied all IFRSs which are
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1
December 2016 for the consolidated financial statements
except for the adoption of the new / revised IFRSs that are
relevant to the Group and effective from the current year as

set out below.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANC
ra M BRI A

Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E B R MR

Year ended 30 November 2018 BZ—T— N\E+—A=F+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new / revised IFRSs
Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both

changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The adoption of the amendments results in the additional
disclosures in Note 26(b) to the consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify, among others, how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at

fair value.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle: IFRS 12 —
Clarification of the scope

The amendments clarify that except for the summarised
financial information for subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in which the interests are classified or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5, the requirements of IFRS 12 apply to

interests in entities within the scope of IFRS 5.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by

the Group is set out below.
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements is historical cost.

2.

EXSTEE#SE)
AT/ RETER M B REER 2 KA
BB E 5 ERIE 7 H 265 A - i Fq B
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B 75 R MY o

BB St ERIF 12215574 - BAEE
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AIFE SR NEPFAFERED B AD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra M BRI A

Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation / combinations

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using

consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transactions provide evidence of an impairment of

the asset transferred.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation,
are measured initially either at fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This
choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
initially measured at fair value, unless another measurement

basis is required by IFRSs.
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling

interest having a deficit balance.

The results of subsidiaries are consolidated / combined from
the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to
be consolidated / combined until the date that such control

ceases.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E B R MR

Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BAgHBE@®
Basis of consolidation / combinations (continued) wEe/AHEEE)
Changes in ownership interest HEREZZE

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the

owners of the Company.

Merger accounting for business combination involving

entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the control of the ultimate

controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing carrying values from the ultimate
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the ultimate controlling parties’ interest. All differences
between the cost of acquisition (fair value of consideration
paid) and the amounts at which the assets and liabilities,
arising from the Reorganisation, are recorded have been
recognised directly in equity as part of the capital reserve.
The consolidated financial statements includes the results of
each of the combining entities or businesses from the date of
incorporation / establishment or, if later, since the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, regardless of the date of the common control

combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra M BRI A

Year ended 30 November 2018 BZ T — \E+—A=+HILFE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation / combinations (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control (continued)

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previous

separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common

2.

BEAXEBE®)

Be AHEEE)
BREGIE T EBEBSHEAHEH
B (E)
BEBFERANETEBEARE WA
HAMEEZXIRA(FEELER &
SER AREREEER KA - BE6
LB 2y BEEE Y KAREES)

control combination that is to be accounted for by using TN EEAHEER AR -
merger accounting, are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

Subsidiaries Ft B A =

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position as set
out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced
to its recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of the subsidiary
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and / or receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'
e B mRM A
Year ended 30 November 2018 H#EZE=F— \F+—A=F+HIFE
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EXEHBEE@®
Property, plant and equipment Y BERRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less P W RBRBRENBRIANERR

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the period in which they are

incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a

reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

SHREERYIM - ¥ - BERREEEB
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ERRERGEHIERERAEMEREEZ
A - ERRERSXTTREELREA
RBEF S ©
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TEEFHZEIEEDAE%??%%%EHE@% * DA
HERARRERERE - W% - #ER
REBBZEMOHEE TR A ERFH
ZHEB ARG BULIEABEES R RIT
€

Buildings 50 years g 504
Leasehold improvements 10 years HEWMERE 104F
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10 years RIE - KBRRHAZRE 104

Motor vehicles 5 years RE 54
Computer equipment 2.5 years EX R 254

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised P MR RRBIEE RN E SR TEHRFE

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the item is derecognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets
Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
are capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources to complete the development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as an expense as
incurred. When the asset is available for use, the capitalised
development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over
a period of 3 years. For intangible assets yet to be available
for use, they are stated at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.
Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
and only when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control

of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified

in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra M BRI A

Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIN‘ANC/I»ATL STATEMENTS

B B S R M R

Year ended 30 November 2018 BZ—T— N\E+—A=F+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial
liabilities.

1) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including trade and other
receivables, due from directors, restricted bank
balances and bank balances and cash are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and
are not held for trading. They are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition over the period to maturity. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition, impairment or through the

amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.
2) Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities represent trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings and obligations
under finance leases. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be

insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra M BRI A

Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EXREHEER®
Financial instruments (continued) SEMIAE)
Classification and measurement (continued) BERFEE)

3)  Effective interest method 3)  EERFIRZ%

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the periods, respectively. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash receipts or payments through the expected

BERMNEERLAFESREER
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Z R AT R KR S WA KA

life of the financial asset or liability, respectively, or KT o
where appropriate, a shorter period.
Impairment of financial assets THAEERE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E B R MR

Year ended 30 November 2018 BZ—T— N\E+—A=F+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases:

Revenue from system integration and development services
and consultancy services is recognised using the percentage
of completion method as detailed in the paragraph headed
“Service contracts” in Note 2 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Sales of externally acquired / purchased hardware and
software for system integration and development services is
recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when goods are

delivered to customers and the title is passed.

IT outsourcing services income is recognised when services

are rendered.

Maintenance services income is recognised on a straight-line

basis over the life of the related agreements.
Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements is presented in RM because the Group's
transactions are mainly conducted in RM, which is the
functional currency of the operating subsidiaries of the Group
in Malaysia. The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$").

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in profit or loss.
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented, are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period.

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate.

o all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

o on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation and a disposal involving the loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to the foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit

or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

o on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the non-
controlling interests in that foreign operation and are not

reclassified to profit or loss; and

. on all other partial disposals, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is

reclassified to profit or loss.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S R M R

Year ended 30 November 2018 &&= ==
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, other costs that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition, is
calculated using the first in, first out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period of the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s investment
in a subsidiary may be impaired or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In addition, the Group tests
its intangible assets that are yet to be available for use for
impairment by estimating their recoverable amount on an
annual basis or whenever there is an indication that those
assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of intangible assets not yet available for
use is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest
group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e.

a cash-generating unit).

2.

BB B
i
FEERRARAERFEME ZREED]

B RARREASTHIARHE - EPBEAM
EBERAR(HER)SHFEERHARE
B MARREFTES 2 MM o A &R F
BN B ERBEBEP 2 EFHHEERR
TR HE R At AT E o

FEHER ZEFECEAENERE
Bl 2 B RER AR o EAFEHR
EABRFEZSEMMBFERE
MR B IRE L HMER R o E[
FEMR 2 EABE S EELROH
RERA/RIEERARAX I FEESR -

Htb EERE

REREHR - AEESERHAERIND
BRRR  UHERE B ERTRERR
ME - BRhERE BYEERARAR
Bﬁ%’“ﬂZ}xéﬁJ EHERRE - sk BiE
RZBEBEEE DT HFERA LR
Lo MHREAEBTSR  BERBEE
ZAFEBREERAREREEARSE
REVEABEZAIREI SR - - K&
BB BT F RN A LR BEN R A
AR AT E R 2 BB B 2 PR Bl & FEOR
AALEFETVEEZRE - WFEERZE
PR mARHRERZETEE 2 TRE
SRDBEAFEROEXAEREREER
ZEEEME - WAL ERNEEZA
WoewE  AARESHABYELRS
MEZ&NERNEEBIRESELEN)Z
AW E SRR

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %k

75



76

N\

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of other assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.
Service contracts

When the outcome of a service contract can be estimated
reliably, service revenue and service costs are recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the stage of
completion of the service contract activity at the end of the
reporting period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred to date

to estimated total contract costs for each contract.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

When the outcome of a service contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are probably recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in

which they are incurred.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as gross amounts due from contract customers.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as gross amounts due to contract
customers. Amounts received before the related work is
performed are recognised as advances received within
current liabilities. Amounts billed for work performed but not
yet paid by the customer are recognised as trade and other

receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E B R MR

Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is recognised as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset and
is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
Finance leases, as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as obligations under finance
leases. Finance charges, which represent the difference
between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of
the assets acquired, are charged to profit or loss over the term
of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each

accounting period.
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Operating leases, as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit

or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

2.

EAEHRE )
BE#)
BEHE  EREABEA

REMEBR T ZENESRN B BHEERH
RELOEMNMER PR -

lease.
Employee benefits EEER
Short term employee benefits HHIESEF

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM
GAMBERERMEE

Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZ—Z— \F+—A=1+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deterred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will net

reverse in the foreseeable future.
Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group, that is defined as:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the holding company of the
Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2018 BZ T — \E+—A=+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BEAEHBEE®)

BT ()

Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the holding company

of the Group.
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Close members of the family of a person are those family —%}\iZLﬁ?ﬁaE/\g ATEZERBHEST
By BHAfEerE%a ATHEZ

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include: %/\ HEBIREKE - WEE -

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (a) ZBATZFRREMBREEHE

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; (b) BmBATZEREBERFEHEZFRZ:
and N4

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or (c) ZmBATHZBALTEBHRAEH
domestic partner. BZXEA -

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes R 2 EEF - BE QR BIEZE S

subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes RElZMBAR  MELELEBREZEE

subsidiaries of the joint venture. T ZHB AR

Segment reporting DWW E

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment REMBHRRAMERIEENHBRED

MEB 22 DEETHRAREZER
DES R E 2 B IR D B K R IRAHE
AAKESRSTREEEREZVBEER
hEAIEE -

item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and

geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Segment reporting (continued)

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going
basis and are based on experience and relevant factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects

future periods.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follow:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets

The management determines the estimated useful lives of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets based on the experience of actual useful lives of
assets of similar nature and functions or expected useful lives
of assets, after taking into account of estimated technology
life cycle. The estimated useful lives could be different as a
result of technical innovations which could affect the related
depreciation and amortisation charges included in profit or

loss.
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets

The management determines whether the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets are impaired
when an indication of impairment exists or when annual
impairment testing is required. This requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, which is equal to the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal or the value in use. Estimating the
value in use requires the management to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. Any impairment will be charged to profit

or loss.
Impairment of trade and other receivables

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of
the Group is based on the evaluation by management
of the collectability of the trade and other receivables. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
assessing the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. If the financial conditions of these
debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their

ability to make payments, allowance will be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E B R MR

Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EASHEE®)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition on an uncompleted project is dependent
on management’s estimation of the total outcome of the
service contract, as well as the work done to date. Based on
the Group’s recent experience and the nature of the activities
undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the
point at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue can be reliably
estimated. As a result, until this point is reached the gross
amounts due from / to contract customers as disclosed in
Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements will not
include profit which the Group may eventually realise from the
work done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of
total revenue or costs may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in the future periods as an

adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue and contract costs prepared for each service
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted contract costs
are prepared by the management based on its experiences.
In order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date,
management conducts periodic reviews of the budgeted
contract costs by comparing the budgeted amounts to the

actual costs incurred.

Significant judgement is required in estimating the contract
revenue and contract costs which may have an impact on
percentage of completion of the service contracts and the

corresponding profit or loss taken.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BEAEHBEE®)

84

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Management bases its judgements of contract revenue and
contract costs on the latest available information. In some
cases the results reflect the expected outcome of long-term
contractual obligations which span more than one reporting
period. Contract revenue and contract costs are affected by
a variety of uncertainties that are dependent on the outcome
of further events and often need to be revised as events
unfold and uncertainties are resolved. The estimates of
contract revenue and contract costs are updated regularly
and significant changes are highlighted through established
internal review procedures. The impact of the changes in
accounting estimates is then reflected in the ongoing results.

Recognition of costs for the initial listing

The management determines the allocation and classification
of relevant costs incurred for initial listing among (i) profit or
loss as listing expenses and (ii) equity as a reduction of share
premium upon the capitalisation issue based on its judgement
on whether such costs are (i) costs for the Company to obtain
the listing status or (ii) incremental costs for the Company
to raise additional funds from the issue of new shares,
respectively. During the year ended 30 November 2018, costs
attributable to obtaining the listing status of approximately
RM9.8 million (2017: approximately RM1.5 million) and
RM5.3 million (2017: Nil) were charged to profit or loss
and recognised in equity as a reduction of share premium,

respectively.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EASHEE®)

BRI I E R 2 RREE
RLELEFEEMBERERER  AREYL
ERFPRABR SIS CEME
RARFERRERZ T ETE
PR TSRS ER o

Future changes in IFRSs

At the date of approving these consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued the following new / revised
IFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which the
Group has not early adopted.

ZE-PEE-EEEY BRI
EEIE 15 RARE ENE 2%

Annual Improvements to IFRSs ~ 2014-2016 Cycle: IFRS 1 and IAS 26' S e

Amendments to IAS 40
Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

IFRS 15
IFRIC-INT 22

Annual Improvements to IFRSs

IFRS 16
IFRIC-INT 23

Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 28
Amendments to IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IASs 1 and 8

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28

2018

Transfers of Investment Property’

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contacts'

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration'

2015-2017 Cyclé’

Leases’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Employee Benefits’

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

Definition of a Business®

Definition of Material

Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
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2020 BEZ
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The effective date to be determined

Except for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 as set out below,
the management of the Group does not anticipate that the
adoption of the new / revised IFRSs in future periods will have
any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Future changes in IFRSs (continued)

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group

are:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IAS 39 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading or
contingent consideration recognised by the acquirer in a
business combination) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss; and

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Future changes in IFRSs (continued)
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies, the management of the Group
anticipate all financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are currently

measured under |AS 39.
Impairment

In general, the management of the Group anticipates that the
application of the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised costs and other items that are subject to the
impairment provisions upon the application of IFRS 9 by the
Group.

The Group will adopt IFRS 9 for the annual periods beginning
on or after 1 December 2018 (the new standard is effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018), with
the use of practical expedients permitted under the standard,
and accordingly will not restate comparative information in the
year of initial application. Considered that the Group assesses
the new customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
for the customer before acceptance, the management of the
Group anticipates that the implementation of the expected
credit loss model is not expected to result in any significant
impact on the Group’s financial performance and position

upon initial adoption of IFRS 9.
IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities
to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11
“Construction contracts” and the related interpretations when
it becomes effective. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that
an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be

entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Future changes in IFRSs (continued)

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Specifically, IFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
IFRS 15.

The Group will adopt IFRS 15 using modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the
adoption, if any, will be recognised in the opening retained
profits at 1 December 2018 (the new standard is effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) and
the comparative information will not be restated.

The management of the Group preliminarily considered that
the performance obligations that may be identified for the
contracts with the customers and the manner for the Group
to satisfy the performance obligations, in this regard, sales
of externally acquired / purchased hardware and software,
IT outsourcing services and maintenance services, and
the use of the input method in measuring the percentage
of completion for system integration and development
services and consultancy services, under IFRS 15 are similar
to the current identification and recognition of revenue
components under the Group’s existing revenue recognition
policy developed under IAS 18 and IAS 11 and therefore,
the adoption of IFRS 15 in the future will have no significant
impact on recognition of revenue. However, the application of
IFRS 15 in future may result in more disclosures.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Future changes in IFRSs (continued)
IFRS 16: Leases

IFRS 16 significantly changes the lessee accounting by
replacing the dual model under IAS 17 with a single model
which requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities
for the rights and obligations created by leases unless the
exemptions apply. Besides, among other changes, it requires
enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessees and lessors.
Based on the preliminary assessment, the management is of
the opinion that upon leasing any properties, machinery or
equipment that are currently classified as operating leases
under IAS 17 will trigger the recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities in accordance with IFRS 16. In
subsequent measurement, depreciation (and, if applicable,
impairment loss) and interest will be recognised on the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities respectively, of which
the amount in total for the reporting period is not expected
to be significantly different from the periodic operating lease
expenses recognised under |IAS 17. Apart from the effects
as outlined above, it is not expected that IFRS 16 will have
a material impact on the future financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Group upon adoption.

As set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements,
at 30 November 2018, the total future minimum lease payment
under non-cancellable operating leases of the Group in
respect of premises amounted to approximately RM228,000.
The management of the Company does not expect the
adoption of IFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting
policy would result in significant impact on the Group’s
financial performance but it is expected that the Group has
to separately recognise the interest expenses on the lease
liabilities and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
assets, and that certain portion of the future minimum lease
payments under the Group’s operating leases will be required
to be recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
The Group will also be required to remeasure the lease
liabilities upon the occurrence of certain events such as a
change in the lease term and recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liabilities as an adjustment to the
right-of-use assets. In addition, payments for the principal
portion of the lease liabilities will be presented within financing
activities in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS ™
ra M BRI A

Year ended 30 November 2018 &= ==

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being identified as the chief operating decision
makers (the “CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

are:
(i) system integration and development services;
(ii)  IT outsourcing services; and

(iii)  maintenance and consultancy services.
Segment revenue and results

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2

to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment revenue represents revenue derived from the system
integration and development services, IT outsourcing services

and maintenance and consultancy services.

Segment results represent the gross profit reported by each
segment without allocation of other income, administrative
expenses, finance costs, listing expenses and income
tax expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM
of the Group for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
segments is presented as it is not regularly provided to the
CODM for review.

In addition, the Group’s place of domicile is Malaysia, where
the central management and control is located.
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Year ended 30 November 2018 ﬁiz:fzf SN - S EIEF

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the

reportable segments for the years ended 30 November 2018

and 2017 is as follows:

3. ~HERE

P e E S AC )
RBEE-_ZT-NFR-_ZF—tF+—A
=tTHIEFE - EJETE%E"**BF’JI%%@
RRERBZDMERAT

System

integration
and

development

IT

outsourcing

Maintenance
and

consultancy

services services services
REBER ERNE #ER
MR R SRR Gl
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
V-1 557 GEFT V-1 557 V-1.-857
Year ended 30 November 2018 BE-_Z-\F+-A=1+HLEE
Revenue from external customers and KENBEF WK
reportable segment revenue DEE G e 44,468 1,495 1,618 47,581
Reportable segment results AZ2RHHEE 22,475 851 825 24,151
Other information: EEH
Amortisation B 262 - - 262
Research and development expenses W EH 3 1,313 - - 1,313
Year ended 30 November 2017 HE-Z—tF+-A=THLEE
Revenue from external customers and KENBEPL 2 K#K
reportable segment revenue DEEET e 34,634 1,451 2,844 38,929
Reportable segment results BEL et 18,599 1,064 1,922 21,585
Other information: EEH -
Amortisation B 291 — — 291
Addition of intangible assets REENEE 238 — — 238
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. DEESR#®)
Reconciliation of reportable segment results A2H/D WEF 2 HIR
2018 2017
—EB-N\E —T
RM’000 RM’000
BT BETT
Reportable segment results 2|y EEE 24,151 21,5685
Unallocated income and expenses: AOBERARFAL :
Other income EmA 324 =
Administrative expenses TERAX (4,352) (8,437)
Finance costs Bl & A A (52) (49)
Listing expenses EFmAX (9,805) (1,495)
Profit before income tax B BT 45 %50 Al g A 10,266 16,604
Income tax expenses Fri8RimEx (2,414) (71)
Profit for the year N 5 F) 7,852 16,533
Geographical information thEE R

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (“Specified Non-current Assets”). The
geographical location of revenue is based on the location of
external customers. The geographical location of the Specified
Non-current Assets is based on the physical location of the
assets (in the case of property, plant and equipment, the
location of operation to which they are located, in the case of

intangible assets, the location of operations).

(a) Revenue from external customers

TREINEB()AKEREIMNBES 2K
& R(i)ARBZYE  BEREEUAR
BRAE(FEFRDEE) 2HBELE
ZEM - a2 MIBA B TIRBINBE P
ZRUEME - HEFRDEEZHEUE
TIRBEEEZERVE(BYE  #zk
wE AEMEEEZVE  MEBETE
EAREEZME)ME -

(a) XKEINBEFZ WKt

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RM’000 RM’000

BWF HMFor

Indonesia EERmE 256 —
Malaysia BRI 46,867 38,853
Singapore N 188 76
United Kingdom Y 270 —
47,581 38,929
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE=—Z— \Ft+—A=1+HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (continued)
(b) Specified Non-current Assets

At 30 November 2018 and 2017, all specified non-

current assets are located in Malaysia.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers individually contributing 10% or
more of the total revenue of the Group for the years ended 30
November 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

Customer A BEA
Customer B ®FB

DEE R (@)

HwEER(E)
(b) HEFRBEE
RZF-NFR=

—tF+—A

:—i—EI : ﬁﬁ”ﬁ‘%ﬁ#umiﬂﬁﬁﬁif\ S

FHRPE: o
EHEIEREFZEN
ERERIEARBEEE_—F

—NFEER=

—+F+—A=1+BIFEZ2EKZF10%
A EREREPZWEINT

2018
—B—\%
RM’000

BHFT

30,160
7,750

2017
—T—+F
RM’000
FHT T

26,491
<Note HfzE>

Note: The customer individually did not contribute 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group for the relevant year.

et ZEBEPNBREELEER BB A EE AR

7 10% KA ko

REVENUE Y &5
2018 2017
—B-\F s
RM’000 RM’000
BT ST
System integration and development RGBS M
services: AR 7%
Services provided Frr iR 4 AR 7% 42,840 23,171
Sales of externally acquired / SHE MR U EE
purchased hardware and software BBE 2R 1,628 11,463
44,468 34,634
IT outsourcing services A EHEINA AR TS 1,495 1,451
Maintenance and consultancy services #1{& & B[ AR 1,618 2,844
47,581 38,929
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Year ended 30 N’ovemBer 2018 QZ_T? 7(%4’ A

&E Jtif“l} \

5. OTHER INCOME Har A

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RM’000 RM’000
FEFr T
Exchange gain, net ME 5 W 5E 31 =
Interest income A E U A 251 —
Others Hh 42 =
324 —

6. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX R P15 B A% Al

This is stated after charging:

B TS B AT & M AR I0ER TR E -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥FT HFor
Finance costs A& A
Interest expenses on interest-bearing FHEEEZ
borrowings R 44 44
Finance charges on obligations under BEHEESEZ
finance leases A& & H 8 5
52 49

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Year ended 30 November 2018 ﬁiz:fzf SN - S EIEF

6. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued)

BRET BB ANRF (2)

2018 2017
—EB-\fF —EFLF
RM’000 RM’000
BT HFT
Staff costs and related expenses BIMARIEEBEX
(including directors’ remuneration*) (SEEEEHH")
Salaries, allowances and other e EZUR
benefits in kind Hin BEWEH 6,389 4,414
Contributions to defined contribution — FEEE TS 2 #t5K
plans 562 321
6,951 4,735
Represented by: K&
Staff costs for administrative THRIEEETLZ
and sales staff BTIRA 520 684
Staff costs for research and WERAS 2B ITRA
development expenses 1,313 —
Staff costs capitalised as BEER LRI BEEE|Z
“Intangible assets” BIHKA — 200
Staff costs allocated to “Cost ENREIRBKA]Z
of services” BTIRA 5,118 3,851
6,951 4,735
*  Excluding the estimated value of * FTEERHEEIF®EZ
rent-free staff quarters (G
(Note 7) (KisE7)
Other items HihE g
Amortisation of intangible assets, mREEBE
included in administrative expenses (Gt ATTE ) 262 291
Auditors’ remuneration 1% A % B 460 32
Cost of materials sold B &M A 1,446 8,254
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BERLENE
equipment 158 278
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BERBEZ
and equipment &8 — 250
Operating lease expense REMEERX 82 —
Research and development expenses i35 &2 1,313 =
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

! N
A\

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 27
February 2018. Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Liu Yan Chee
James were appointed as executive directors of the Company
on 27 February 2018 and 8 March 2018, respectively. Mr.
Siah Jiin Shyang and Mr. Lam Pang were appointed as non-
executive directors on 27 February 2018 and 8 March 2018,
respectively. Mr. Chan San Ping, Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella and
Mr. Su Chi Wen were appointed as independent non-executive

directors of the Company on 19 September 2018.

In addition to the directors’ fee, certain directors of the
Company received remuneration from the entities now
comprising the Group during the years ended 30 November
2018 and 2017 for their appointment as employees of these
entities. The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and
receivable by the directors of the Company during the years
ended 30 November 2018 and 2017 are set out below.

Year ended 30 November 2018

7. EEHE

ARARR_E—NF_A-_++tBHEMAS
HEEMAY  c EERLEEREBBELE
PARZFE—NF_A=Z+EHER=F
—NF=ZANBEZERARRIHNTE
EoHBEEERMBEED IR T
—NFZAZF+EAERZZE—NF=AN
HEZAERIEDITES - REFLEE -
EFLLTREBRXEER-_Z—-N\FIHA
TNEEZERRRBIEIENITES -

BRTERBEI ARRZETESENE
ET-)N\FER-_ZT—tF+—-A=+H
LEFEAE B REFHEKAREERBEEH
B MEARSEZERLSERES
T - RBEE_T-NFR_ZFT—LF
T—A=1THLFEEAR ARAESFEHK
KW H BN B REESIAT -

BEE-F-N\F+-A=tHLEFE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary contribution
fees in kind bonus plans
§e 28
Rt it 2
ENEA REEA i P4
RI’000 RII’000 RI’000 RII’000 RI’000
V-7 494 V-7 40 V-7 494 V-3:297 GEFT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping EEMEE - 64 - 9 73
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James EHRE - 17 - 1 18
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang HEELE - - - - -
Mr. Lam Pang mERE - 14 - - 14
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. Chan San Ping RETRA - 7 - - 7
Mr. Su Chi Wen BROULE - 7 - - 7
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella CEE - 7 - - 7
- 116 - 10 126

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 7. EEMEH)
Year ended 30 November 2017 HE_T—+tF+—A=+HLFE
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefits Discretionary contribution
fees in kind bonus plans Total
5 28
REM EBHHN
E2 20k ENRA B B2 5k &t
RM000 RM’000 RM000 RM000 RM000
FEFT FEFT FEFT FEFT FEFT
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping ERMEE — 62 — 9 71
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2BBEAE — — — — —
Non-executive directors Fii7EE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (Note) B Z) - 19 = = 19
Mr. Lam Pang ik = = = = =
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE
directors
Mr. Chan San Ping BRAEF£E — — — = =
Mr. Su Chi Wen BRI EE — — — — —
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella CEEI s — — — — —
— 81 — 9 90
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Year ended 30 November 2018 ﬁizifz SR = A= RENEF &

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 7.

Note: The Group provided certain of the Group’s buildings to Mr. Siah
Jiin Shyang as rent-free staff quarters. The estimated value of
the staff quarters provided based on the depreciation of the
buildings was approximately RM19,000 for the year ended 30
November 2017. On 25 November 2017, the Group entered into
sales and purchase agreements with Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang in
respect of the staff quarters and sold the properties to Mr. Siah
Jiin Shyang, the details of which are set out in Note 26(a)(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the years ended 30 November 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of these directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
a compensation for loss of office. No directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 30
November 2018 and 2017.

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 8.

An analysis of the five highest paid individuals during the
years ended 30 November 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

BEEME 2

Hiat - ZAREE RS R A REAER 2 BHETF
EARHETIRS - RIEZEFTINE - 24t
ZHAIREZHERBEE_S—+tF+—
A=+BIEFEHFH19000T - RZF
—tFE+—A=-+HA  AEBEHREL
EHBIEERMBSRELELEME L
EEWHE - AEFEEHRGRE M SRRMTE
26(a)(ii) °

REBEE-T-—N\FER=_T—+tFt+—A=+
HIEFE @ AEERERERZEESEIN
N DMERIRSIE A AL E @&
ZHBEE) - IEREBERAEE MEEERE
LAEHERNEE_T—\FRZE—LF
+—A=THILFEZERMES L -

TEEREFAL

REE-_ZE—NFR_FT—tF+—A
=THLEE  AggemALTZoWNM
T

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
= G —E—+t%
Director ) — —
Non-director FEE 5 5
5 5

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Year ended 30 November 2018 ﬁiz:f: —N&E+—A=FH JJ:¢T§

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

Details of the remuneration of the above highest paid

individuals are as follows:

TEBREFAL(E)

biisB@EFHALTZHBFBOT

2018 2017
—E-)\F —FtF
RM’000 RM’000
V-7 8 7 FEFT

Salaries, allowances and other e FRREMEYRA
benefits in kind 1,000 798

Contributions to defined contribution — EXEA A& 2 3k

plans 84 71
1,084 869

The number of these individuals whose emoluments fell within

the following emoluments band is as follows:

HEATZMENF TS BE 2 AR

mF -

2017

—E—+tfF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/87T 5 5
During the years ended 30 November 2018 and 2017, no REBEE_ZT-—N\FER=FE—tF+—A

remuneration was paid by the Group to any of these highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as a compensation for loss of office. None of these
highest paid individuals waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments during the years ended 30 November 2018 and
2017.

=tHIEFER - $$@1ﬂhﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁt%
1ERR IR E A
EIMARE B 2 528 - SiEREBBAH
B -REZE_ZE-—N\FR_Z—

BREHALTINEHDH -

A=1THLFER BEEALERSEH
ATHRXAERREAME 2 L5 -
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Year ended 30 November 2018 &HZ=—ZT— \GF+—A=1tHILFE

100

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FBBMAX
2018 2017
—2—N\f —T i
RM’000 RM’000
BEWFT B FoT
Current tax B EA B 18
Malaysia corporate income tax BRA R EATISH
(“Malaysia CIT") ([HBRAERBEMBE]) 2,412 71
Deferred tax ELERE 2 —
Total income tax expenses for the AFEEFREHEXEE
year 2,414 71

The group entities established in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") are exempted from income
tax. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising in or derived from

Hong Kong.

Malaysia CIT is calculated at 24% (2017: 24%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 30 November
2018. Malaysia incorporated entities with paid-up capital of
RM2.5 million or less enjoy tax rate of 18% (2017: 18%) on
the first RM500,000 and remaining balance of the estimated
assessable profits at tax rate of 24% (2017: 24%) for the year
ended 30 November 2018.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

RAESRERRBRERESE([RBRLE
SRz SEERERRAMNEWAE
B ARAKENYERXBEBEELRER
B A BB EMEH o

BRADCEMERRBZE_ZT—/\F
T—A=THLEFEREERT R 2
24% (ZF—+F 1 24%)5t 8 - BRER
7 55 % 2,500,000 7T 3 BA T 2 55 2R 78 6 1
X¥ERBRNEE-_T—\Ft+—A=+AHL
FEMTERBR A 2 5% 5% 500,000
TR KR 18% (ZE—+14F - 18%) B -
MERFEIR T R 24% (= F—+4F : 24%) %
o
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZ—Z— \F+—A=1+HILFE

ol

STATEMENT:

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. (“Mixsol”) and Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd.
(“Tandem”) have obtained the pioneer status effective from
23 September 2011 and 7 December 2012, respectively.
A pioneer status company is eligible for exemption from
income tax on eligible activities and products for five years
and subject to submitting a formal request to the Malaysia
Investment Development Authority on or prior to expiration
date and upon the Ministry of International Trade and Industry
confirming that Mixsol and Tandem have been complying with
all the applicable conditions as imposed, the tax relief period
shall be extended for a further five years after each five-
year tax relief period ends. The pioneer status for Mixsol has
been renewed during the year ended 30 November 2016 and

subject to next renewal on or prior to 22 September 2021. The

FREBMAX &)

Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. ([Mixsol]) X Tandem
Advisory Sdn. Bhd. ([Tandem|)EE5
AT MM SRlE=E——F®8NLA
—t+E=EER-ZE——-Ft+-A+B&EK-
B TIEMN 2 AREERAIRAEFEE
BEBRERBSMEHMAL  HEARE
MBS RAGRERER BRI ENEA
BRREBRZEGNITERERRBETHR
Mz FABERGE REBRFLTHLE

% RHHANE-—SERAF - RBEE=
T—R"FE+—A=1+HILEFE ' Mixsolz
FETEMNETFESE WARZ-ZT=—
FNAZ+ZALZABREE - R=F
—NF+—A=+H8 " TandemZHE T

renewal of the pioneer status for Tandem has been submitted WM E FIRRIWBAFHEBIPI &R S
and is still subject to approval by the relevant authorities at 30 EE -
November 2018.
Reconciliation of income tax expenses FriEFiB X 2 ¥ BR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RM’000 RM’000
BWFT B Fo
Profit before income tax W BT 45 50 A s A 10,266 16,604
Income tax at applicable tax rate RERAMEGTE ZER 3,167 3,908
Non-deductible expenses AR B 2 1,848 508
Tax incentives on pioneer status T ¥y 2 BiTH SRR (2,632) (4,390)
Others Efh 31 45
Income tax expenses FIEBAX 2,414 71

The applicable tax rate is the weighted average of rates
prevailing in the territories in which the Group’s entities
operate against profit or loss before tax. The change in
applicable tax rate is caused by changes in the taxable
results of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries
in which the Group operates.

ERBRERAREERKEMENR AN
SHERR B AT M KB R 2 MITH R Z e
FHBRE - @RAREZBHHAEEEL
EEBRESHBER 2 AKEKHE QT
ZIER KA R E IR -
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10.

RAMBBEME

~ Year ended 30 November 2018 BZ =T —\F+—A=THIFE

,‘\\\\\§:‘ - \ ) 4 /
E"C‘ONéo DATE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following information:

Profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company, used in
basic and diluted earnings per
share calculation

RIEFHHBRERRETRT
AR RIGER AR F

10. BRER

ARRHEBEANBEERNREE RN TIRE
ATNBURRTE

2018 2017
—B-N\% —Et#
RM’000 RM’000
BT BEFT
7,852 16,533

Weighted average number of ordinary F{EaT B ERELR KR EEEF

ZE BRI IR

shares for basic and diluted

earnings per share calculation

Number of shares
RBEE

285,821,918 273,000,000

The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating basis and diluted
earnings per share has been determined based on the
assumption that the issue of shares at incorporation of the
Company, the Reorganisation and the Capitalisation Issue
(as defined in the Note 23(v) to the consolidated financial
statements) to the shareholders had occurred on 1 December
2016.

Diluted earnings per share are same as the basic earnings
per share as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares
in existence during the years ended 30 November 2018 and
2017.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

R EEREAREERFFFAE LR
AR pn e 19 E T E AR R AR A A
VEBRITRG BEARMKREEITESR
RERMbET(EERGEVBRRME
23V ER=_E—"F+-_A—Bi#fT-

HREZE-Z-—NFR-Z—+F+—A
SHHLESFE  YEEMAZEBEXE
ZEBRK SRESRNESRELRN
I



11.

DIVIDENDS 11. BE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F S
RM’000 RM’000
BEFT EEFT
Dividends declared by the entities EHEKERASEZERBEIRN&
now comprising the Group and paid  EHEEEEREREAS AKRN
to the then equity holders of the ZRR B
entities 14,000 20,434
On 14 September 2018, a special dividend of approximately NR—ZE—-—NFHNLAT+TITOAE & FIK

RM14.0 million was declared and payable to the then equity
holders of the entities now comprising the Group. The
dividend was paid on 26 September 2018.

14,000,000 7T 2 45 51| i% 2. [m) 48 A 3R s AN £

BrERZERBEERFEATIKMKM
BRER—_ZF—NFNLAZTXRBIKM -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended 30 November 2018 &HZ=—ZT— \GF+—A=1tHILFE

12. Y% - WBRRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor Computer
Buildings  improvements equipment vehicle equipment Total
BB HER
BF  EENERE RAERE RE ElRfG &t
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM000 RM'000
FEFI FEFI FEFI FEFT FEFI BT
Reconciliation of carrying FEBHE — 82
amount - Year ended 30 “E-tE1-f
November 2017 =+HLEEE
At 1 December 2016 R=F-~F+-f-A 2,201 503 172 14 90 3,107
Additions HE — — 28 — 72 9%
Depreciation ik (47) (76) (50) (47) (58) (278)
Disposals e (847) (348) - - (1) (1,196)
At 30 November 2017 R=ZB-t#+-A=1H 1,307 79 145 94 103 1728
Reconciliation of carrying ~ REBYE — HZ
amount - Year ended 30 —E-N\E1-A
November 2018 =+HLEEE
At 1 December 2017 R=F-+F+-f-A 1,307 79 145 9% 103 1,728
Additions HE - - - - 8 8
Depreciation ik (28) 1) (24) (47) (48) (158)
At 30 November 2018 RZE-N\§+-B=1H 1,279 68 121 47 63 1,578
At 30 November 2017 R=2-tF+-A=1H
Cost A 1,390 112 268 235 208 2,213
Accumulated depreciation Z5HNE (83) (33) (123) (141) (105) (485)
1,307 79 145 94 103 1,728
At 30 November 2018 R=Z-N§+-B=+H
Cost A 1,390 12 268 235 216 2,221
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (111) (44) (147) (188) (153) (643)
1,279 68 121 47 63 1,578

The carrying amount of the Group’s motor vehicles held under

finance leases amounted to approximately RM47,000 (2017:
RM94,000) as at 30 November 2018 (Note 21).

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

BEREHERE2AEESEZREAER
—E-NFE+—A=FTHHF®47,0007T

(ZF—

£

F5#94,000T) (MizE21) °



2 B3 3 B

Year ended 30 November 2(518 EE_‘T INEF— H +EIJJ:¢V

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13. BEFEE

Internally
developed
technologies

AR R 2 B
RM’000
BT
Reconciliation of carrying amount — Year REEHE — 82
ended 30 November 2017 —Z—t+tF+-A=1+HLEE
At 1 December 2016 RZE—X"F+=A—H 444
Additions NE 238
Amortisation T (291)
At 30 November 2017 R-—Z—tF+—-HA=+H 391
Reconciliation of carrying amount — Year REEYE — 8F
ended 30 November 2018 —Z2-N\E+—-A=t+HLEE
At 1 December 2017 R=ZZT—tF+=A—H 391
Amortisation T (262)
At 30 November 2018 R-—ZE-N\F+—HA=+H 129
At 30 November 2017 R-ZE—tF+—H=+H
Cost [B#N 1,028
Accumulated amortisation Rt (637)
391
At 30 November 2018 R=—ZE-N\Ft+—HA=1+H
Cost XA 1,028
Accumulated amortisation Rt (899)
129
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Year ended 30 .N'ovember 2(518 ﬁz T 7(%1’ A=+BILFEE

13.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Development costs represented costs incurred at the
development phase of certain new technologies, which are
capitalised and amortised (if applicable) in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group carried out annual impairment test for intangible
assets where an indicator of impairment appears by
comparing their recoverable amounts to their carrying

amounts at the end of the reporting period.

At 30 November 2018 and 2017, all the intangible assets are
available for use and the management is of the view that there
is no impairment indication for the intangible assets.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

13.

BEEE@)

P ATERE TR AERBRME
EZBA > RERBESVBEMMT2
PR 2 &5 R T A& AL K 35 (fin i
A) e

AEBEENBERRLRBEEZA

Wm e EREE  EEE HRBER
SETFRBERH -
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14. SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 30 November 2(518 ﬁz‘/ - TN — H +RILEE

14. HEAF
FRARBREHRZEIEZMBARTMNT

Details of principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Directly held by the Company

ARAERENE

Excel Elite Global Limited
(“Excel Elite”)

Excel Elite Global Limited
(TExcel Elite])

Indirectly held by the Company
EREFERE

Mixsol

Mixsol

Concorde Technology Sdn. Bhd.

(“Concorde”)

Concorde Technology Sdn. Bhd.

(TConcorde])

Tandem

Tandem

Place of
incorporation

AL
ik

The BVI

ABRAES

Malaysia

HREE

Malaysia

SRR

Malaysia

SRS

Paid-up /
registered share
capital

BAIR/ERE

United States
Dollar
(“US$")13,890

13,890%T
(1%7l)

RM200,502

5%200,5027

RM500,000

58%500,0007C

RM500,000

5 %500,0007C

Attributable equity interest Principal activities and
held by the Company  place of operation

KRAMGEGEE  TEEBREEMY

2018
—E-N\E

100%

100%

100%

100%

2017
2t

100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong

REZK  FE

100%  Provision of system integration and
computer related services, Malaysia
REZGEAREMEERS  SRAR

100%  Provision of IT products and services,

Malaysia
REABEMAN REANR ERE A R
A% BRAR

100%  Provision of management advice and
consultancy services for computer
software and information technology,
Malaysia

REBAEMAMREANRZERE AR
ARB - BRAER
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Year ended 30 November 2018 &HZ=—ZT— \GF+—A=1tHILFE

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

15. BEZREMEBYRIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZET—+F
Notes RM’000 RM’'000
HaE BWFT B FoT

Trade receivables B2 EWRE
A related party —Z B 15(a) — 466
Third parties F=F 15(b) 3,418 9,806
15(c) 3,418 10,272

Other receivables Hfth FE U AR X

Deposits, prepayments and other 2 BNRkEME

receivables WKIE 15(d) 1,647 364
Due from a related party FE U — 4 BB 75 5K IE 15(e) — 552
1,647 916
5,065 11,188

(a) Trade receivables from a related party

The trade receivables due from a related party, Affiniti
Data Sdn. Bhd. (“Affiniti”), in which Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang

(one of the ultimate controlling parties) had 50%

shareholding interest, was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. No provision had been made for

the non-repayment of the amount due.

Affiniti (Note)

Affiniti (47:F)

(a) FEW—REABSZESERKE

& W — 2 R Bk

(Affiniti Data Sdn.

Bhd. (FAffinitiJ))Zﬁ%FEHﬁkIEP‘—’j
MR 2B RAKRERER
Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmsﬁﬁﬁ%&%i(ﬁqﬂ—%ﬁ%
FERRJ5 ) $578 50% Ak i o 134 3t 8 P
ZARER B IREM -

Outstanding amount
i AREESE

Greatest

during the

year
REE
BetHE
RM’000
BT

466

At At

30 November 1 December
2018 2017
R=—B-NE R-FT—tH
+-A=+t8  +=A-8
RM’000 RM’000
BT HEFT

— 466

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Year ended 30 November 2(518 EE_T“ INEF— H +EIJJ:¢V

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Trade receivables from a related party (continued)

Note: Affiniti ceased to be a related party of the Group on 5
March 2018.

Trade receivables from third parties

The Group normally grants credit periods of up to
30 days, from the date of issuance of invoices, to its
customers as approved by the management on a case

by case basis.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

15. ESREMBYRIEE)

(a) EW—FEAHAI2EZEWRREE)
Hiat - Affinitt R=Z— N \F=ARBTHA
AEEz —E@HT -
(b) EWFE=FZEZEKRRIE

REEE—REZERERAEEFPR TR
EREEHEHBERLARBEFES
B0RZEEH -

() RHMEHKR BEFAHENZES
FEWTRIR 2 BRI AT A0 TS

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —Z—+F
RM’000 RM’000
BT V-7
Within 30 days 30 KA 470 3,373
31 to 60 days 31 E 60X 98 100
61 to 90 days 61E90K 1,355 961
91 to 180 days 91E 180Kk 1,436 3,054
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K — 2,316
Over 365 days B8 365K 59 468
3,418 10,272

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %%}

109



110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLI
mEMBEmRME

~ Year ended 30 November 2018 BZ =T —\F+—A=THIFE

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c)

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis

of the trade receivables by due date is as follows:

15. ESREMEKE

(c)

RIR ()
(%)

R|ERR - RO ARE D 2B HE
WRRIE 2 BRER DATIA T

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF

RM’000 RM’000
BWFT eI
Not yet due R HEA 470 3,839
Past due: BA

Within 30 days 30 KA 98 100
31 to 60 days 31 260X 1,355 961
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 1,273 2,513
91 to 180 days 91 E 180k 163 541
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K — 2,316
Over 365 days i@ 365K 59 2
2,948 6,433
3,418 10,272

Before accepting any new customer, the Group REZEAH RS - ASE ST EE

assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits for the customer. The majority of
the Group’s trade receivables that are past due but
not impaired have good credit quality with reference to

respective settlement history.

The Group’s trade receivables which are past due at the
end of the reporting period but which the Group has not
impaired as there has not been any significant changes
in credit quality of customers and the management
believes that the amounts are fully recoverable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no history of default. The Group does not hold any
collateral over the trade receivables.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

EEFPZEELER  WREFPAERE
REF - K2ERQZB/EELR A%
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RAFEARGZEEEER -
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE=—Z— \Ft+—A=1+HILFE

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(d) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Included in deposits, prepayments and other
receivables at 30 November 2018 was a prepayment to
a company which provides IT outsourcing services to
the Group of approximately RM1,500,000.

(e) Due from a related party

The amount due from Global Software House Sdn. Bhd.
(“Global Software”), in which Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (one
of the ultimate controlling parties) had 50% shareholding
interest, was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Global Software (Note) Global Software (#7#)

15. ESRHEMBWRIRE)

(d)

(e)

2E  ANRRAEMERRE

RZE—NF+—A=+Hit AR
¢ BARREMERFEROS
#1,500,000 T i N —RERIAEE
REEABBIINHRBH AR 2 E
NG

et — & BB 75 FOR

fEUZ Global Software House Sdn.
Bhd. ([Global Softwarel)ZZIBEA
FEHMHE  \EER 2ERER
EREER - MARELEER—%
BEVEIRTT ) R 2 A 71 50% ARFE ©

Outstanding amount

e R AH & 8

Greatest At At
during the 30 November 1 December

year 2018 2017
FEE R-B-NF R-B—+F
ESe€® t+-A=+H +=H—H

RIM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BEFrT B¥TT FETT
552 — 552

Note: Global Software ceased to be a related party of the
Group on 20 April 2018.

Ktz# : Global Software® —Z— /\&rM A
—tETHAASE — & -
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Year ended 30 November 2018 ®#Z =T —\E+—A=+HILFE

16. GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM / TO CONTRACT 16.
CUSTOMERS

Bl BRENEFREHEE

2018 2017
—EF-N\E —T—+F

RM’000 RM’000
BMFT FEToT
Amounts due from contract customers EUE X F I8 4,658 1,280
Amounts due to contract customers EREHRFPHRIE (57) (15,582)
4,601 (14,302)
Contracts costs incurred plus BEES LIRS B2 AR
recognised profits less recognised ESBRREE
losses to date 67,327 21,046
Less: progress billings received and  Ji - B4 & U E R
receivable (62,726) (35,348)
4,601 (14,302)

At 30 November 2018 and 2017, no retention was held by
customers on service contracts. At 30 November 2018, no
advances were received (2017: approximately RM15,296,000)
from customers for contract in progress. All the gross
amounts due from / to contract customers are expected to be

recovered / settled within one year.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

—E-NER-_ZE—tF+—A=+
MEEVREANZEEBARE
cHRZE-N\F+—A=+H BE=
T —14F : 4958 15,296,000T) A E
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Year ended 30_November 2(518 ﬁz .T 7\¢‘|’ H SR ERE =

17. DUE FROM DIRECTORS 17. BERWEERE
The amounts due from directors were non-trade in nature, E%ﬁ%%ﬁ(ﬁ#y#fﬁ%ﬁg CEIER . B
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. No RERZNRER BERINPAZREER
provision had been made for the non-repayment of the mlﬁﬁﬁ'kﬁéﬁ o

amounts due.

Outstanding amount
AR EESRE
Greatest At At

during the 30 November 1 December

year 2018 2017
AEE RIB-NF R-B—tF
ES€¥® t+—-A=+H +=A—H

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

W F T BT SHFr

Mr. Chong Yee Ping EEMEE 2,796 — 39
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang HISRFE ST 7,743 — 7,743
— 7,782
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~ Year ended 30 November 2018 BZ =T —\F+—A=THIFE

18. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 18. ZRFIMITLEER
The Group had obtained banking facilities on issuance of AEBERBETHE TAGERIREZ
bank guarantees granted by certain creditworthy banks. Such RITHERIVSRITRE - AEREBXR
facilities were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances. FISRITAESRFTIE(R - MAKEREITHES
At 30 November 2018, the Group had utilised approximately s AEER_Z—/N\F+—A=+
RM525,000 (2017: approximately RM762,000) under such ARmE P EITRITERE D AIE A ZA
facilities for issuing bank guarantees to customers in respect BIE TN 24 EEE 5250000 ( —F—+%F -
of the Group’s fulfilment of related contracts. #9551 762,000 ) °
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. EZRHEHMEMNRE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —T—tF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
HiiF BMTT EETFT
Trade payables B S EARIE
Related parties E2)pa 19(a) — 93
Third parties F=FH 1,936 1,633
19(b) 1,936 1,726
Other payables Hit K8
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E A FE S FRIE 2,735 2,085
Accrued listing expenses FEE ETRX 5,668 1,495
8,403 3,580
10,339 5,306
(a) Trade payables to related parties (a) ERBEHIZESEMRE
The trade payables due to related parties ultimately FETBAS 75 2 B 5 R 5RIE R &K
controlled by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, one of the ultimate W 2B RAEREREE Z5H
controlling parties, were unsecured, interest-free and Bt 7 AN BR A SE AR (LR — R iRiE
repayable on demand. All balances were settled at 30 BT )BT e RZE—N\F+—
November 2018. R=+H ' FEEBREER -
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(b)

of the trade payables based on invoice date is as

5%

- AL Ly \\
Year ended 30 November 2018 BBEZE—F—N\F+—A=+HILF

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis

19. EZRHEMENSRIEE)

RBERAR REZAHE S 2 &
HEMNFBAZ REDTOT :

follows:
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—+tF
RM’000 RM’000
BWFT EEFT
Within 30 days 30 KA — 339
31 to 60 days 31 260X — —
61 to 90 days 61 E 90K — 38
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 1,576 1,345
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 360 —
Over 365 days iR 365K — 4
1,936 1,726

The credit term on trade payables is up to 90 days.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

20. FFEREE

BERNFAZEERRZR/OX

2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—+F
RM’000 RM’000
FEFT FFor
Interest-bearing borrowings (secured) HEEE (HHEIMF) 894 928
Carrying amounts of interest-bearing  ZBRUATNFHEZFEEEZE
borrowings that are repayable EEHZE)
(Note)
Within one year —F A 36 34
One to two years —EWF 38 36
Two to five years MERF 124 118
Over five years HBiBhF 696 740
894 928
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

20.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)

Note: The interest-bearing borrowings, with a clause in their terms
that gives the lender an overriding right to demand repayment
at their sole discretion, are classified as current liabilities even
though the management does not expect that the lender would
exercise its rights to demand repayment. The amounts due are
presented based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

The interest-bearing borrowings represent amounts due to
a bank in Malaysia with a maturity period of 17 years at 30
November 2018.

At 30 November 2018 and 2017, the interest-bearing
borrowings bore a floating interest rate at the bank’s Base
Lending Rate minus 2.10% per annum. The effective interest
rate on interest-bearing borrowings at 30 November 2018 is
4.8% (2017: 4.6%) per annum.

The interest-bearing borrowings are drawn under a banking
facility. The interest-bearing borrowings are secured and
guaranteed by:

(i) properties owned by the Group with aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RM1,279,000 (2017:
approximately RM1,307,000) at 30 November 2018,
as set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial

statements; and
(i) guarantees provided by the ultimate controlling parties.

The Group is in the progress of releasing the above
guarantees provided by the ultimate controlling parties
by replacement of corporate guarantees provided by the
Company in favour of the bank or repaying the interest-

bearing borrowings.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

20.

SFEEE®)

Hiet : FHEEREZED —RIEFTETERAZE—
PIRER] - AR E 2 RRMBEERET  BE
EEBYTEHERABITEERER
A HEFEBEREDOBERRBAE - BIHRK
HHREZEERBAMBAEERDHE
5l o

ARBEER_F-N\Ft+—-H=18%
HERM/I7TFEZ RN BB RADRTZ

A -

RZE—NER_ZT—+F+—A=+
H st EEBERRTELEERMNEZ2)EH
FMEBREME210%5HE - RZT—N\F
+—A=+8 " FE{EEZEBNEAETF
ME48% (ZF—+4F :4.6%) -

AEBEARBRITRERRZEE - &t
BREEZEARERNT

(i) RZZE-—NF+—-—A=+H X%
EFEEMEZEAEMFELNEE
1,279,000T0(=F—+F - 95K
1,307,0007T) - BAFBHNREA
B SRRN T 12 &

(i) AREEBRTAREEER -

AEBBREEBHARNRBNRITAZEA
B 2 RBEERE KRR Dl &R ER Ty
EH 2 BERUEEFBEE -
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21.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had obligations

under finance leases repayable as follows:

21. HEHESHE
RIBEBRR AEEETEE REEE
HEEMOT :

Minimum lease

Present value of

minimum lease

payments payments
RIEHERE REHEREZRE
2018 2017 2018 2017
= LIV — T+ LRI — T —
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FWF T EHFor | BEFrT HFT
Amount payable: FERTFRIA -
Within one year —FR 29 29 24 22
One to two years —EWF 29 29 25 24
Two to five years MERF 84 88 76 77
Over five years HBRRF 5 29 5 28
147 175 130 151
Future finance charges ARBEER (17) (24)
Present value of lease obligations HEEFETZHE 130 151
Less: Amounts due for settlement & - 7 128 A R ZIH
within 12 months BB %E (24) (22)
Amounts due for settlement after R 1218 A& ZIHEE
12 months B 106 129
The Group leased a motor vehicle under finance lease with a AEBRERMESHERE S A

lease term of 108 months. It is secured by the lessor’s charge
over the leased asset. At 30 November 2018, the effective
interest rate for the obligations under finance leases is 3.7%

(2017: 3.2%) per annum.

108f@ A - ﬁuﬁ%ﬂ}\f‘%ﬂﬂgﬁézgﬁ
YRt

—+14F :3.2%) °

—E-N\F+—A=1R B
ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁgz;ﬁ%ﬁuzm]% =

=
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22. DEFERRED TAX

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities arising

from depreciation allowance for the years ended 30 November

%é%iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁ

Year ended 30 November 2018 &HZ=—ZT— \GF+—A=1tHILFE

2018 and 2017 was as follows:

22, EIERBIH

KTARBE_FT-NFR_F—tF
TA=ZTHLEENERBEEZAE

BZRERREEED

2018 2017

=E2-N\F —T—+F

RM’000 RM’000

BT Voioki b

At the beginning of the reporting period 7 % 2147 7

Charge to profit or loss RiEz IR —

At the end of the reporting period RIREER 9 7
23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. RA&

Number of Equivalent

Note shares to RM

i3 RGHE HEREM%

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

BREE0.01ETZ AR

Authorised: ERE
At 27 February 2018 RZF-NFZRA=1++H
(date of incorporation) (Eﬂﬂﬁku BE) 38,000,000 380,000 197,600
Increase i (iv) 1,962,000,000 19,620,000 10,398,600
At 30 November 2018 R=B-NF+-B=1+H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 10,596,200
Issued and fully paid: EREIREHAR -
At 27 February 2018 RZF-NE-A=1++H
(date of incorporation) (FEMA S B HA) (i) 2 0.02 —*
Issuance of shares under the BEEAETRA
Reorganisation (iii) 9,998 99.98 53
Capitalisation Issue B ET (v) 272,990,000 2,729,900.00 1,446,847
Issuance of shares by ways of REERAREEFAET
placing and public offer g (vi) 117,000,000 1,170,000.00 620,100
At 30 November 2018 RZE-N\F+-A=1H 390,000,000 3,900,000.00 2,067,000
* Represented amount less than RM1. *RESEFDNERE T o
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZ—Z— \F+—A=1+HILFE

23. SHA

Notes:

0]

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

RE CAPITAL (continued)

Upon incorporation, 2 ordinary shares were allotted and issued
to Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang at par value.

On 12 September 2018, Mr. Chong Yee Ping transferred the one
nil-paid share to Delicate Edge Limited (“Delicate Edge”) and
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang transferred the one nil-paid Share to King
Nordic Limited (“King Nordic”), both at nil consideration.

On 13 September 2018, a sale and purchase agreement was
entered into between (i) Mr. Chong Yee Ping; (ii) Mr. Siah
Jiin Shyang; (iii) Mr. Liu Yan Chee James and Mr. Lam Pang
(collectively referred to as the “Pre-IPO Investors”); and (iv)
the Company, pursuant to which the Company acquired the
5,000, 5,000 and 3,890 shares of Excel Elite that were legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin
Shyang, and the Pre-IPO Investors respectively (being the
entire issued share capital of Excel Elite), at a consideration of
US$13,890 to be satisfied in full by the Company crediting two
nil-paid shares of the Company held by Delicate Edge and King
Nordic as fully paid up and issuing and allotting 3,599, 3,599,
1,400 and 1,400 shares of the Company to Delicate Edge (as
directed by Mr. Chong Yee Ping), King Nordic (as directed by
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang), Mr. Liu Yan Chee James and Mr. Lam
Pang, respectively. Due to the fact that the issuance of share is
only a step of the Reorganisation, the shares of the Company as
issued were recorded at par value.

On 19 September 2018, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased by HK$19,620,000 by the creation of
an additional of 1,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 22 October 2018, 272,990,000 shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued and allotted to the then shareholders of the
Company in proportion to their shareholdings in the Company,
credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of the sum
of HK$2,729,900 standing to be credit of the share premium
account of the Company (the “Capitalisation Issue”).

On 22 October 2018, the Company issued and allotted a total
of 117,000,000 shares by ways of placing and public offer for
105,300,000 shares and 11,700,000 shares, respectively, of
HK$0.01 each at the offer price of HK$0.62 per share by ways
of placing and share offer.

R
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N RS aa
; 3\ \ AR | F
A N -
B
STATEMENT
23. BA&#E)
i3
() MR 2REBREEEERER

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

BITTEEREERHBIERLE

R-Z—NFAA+—B EEREEE—
& R B AR TR A& 10 M E 85% T Delicate Edge
Limited ([Delicate Edgel) - T #i 8 #£ %
A — AR R AR AR 19 4 (B 88 38 T King
Nordic Limited ([King Nordic]) ©

RZZ-—NFHA+=8 " () EEREL
(i) SRR SR A 5 (ifi) B B BB S £ R BS S &
(RBIERXLAAREHREE]D  R(VAE
RAFIEEHZE 1Bt - ARAARE
13,8903 Jt Ut 8% Excel Elite 2 5,000 % -
5,000 A% & 3,890 % A% 15 (9 Bl i1 88 B 3 5t
RS ERBRAREERES
A58 %A (ENExcel Elite 2808 1T
) - K{EH KR A K Delicate Edge &
King Nordic A AN 1 & 2 Fi IR R Bk 51 A&
1D ABRFIVESLZ A & 5 Bl 1A Delicate Edge
(FREEMEEIET)  King Nordic (F#iE8
L EIRR) © BIB B 5 4 RSk 81T
K ERE AR A 23,5990 « 3,599/ + 1,400
& 5 1,400 RAR D 2 7 A2 BT - A E
TROERELZEP—F  BARARELT
2R DIEEEAR ©

RZZ—N\FEAA+IE - BRLHEN
1,962,000,000 #& & §% 0.01 & 2 i1 + &
ANBELEE A IE 1N 19,620,000 AT ©

R=—Z—\F+A=+=A 272,990,000
A& &A% 0.01 7 T 2 RIDIRA R RIRR Z i
FRAELL B B B R BAT T AND A E B 2 AR
R ZEROEBERNMARAKRMNEE
BR 425 2,729,900 T 2 77 A BRSIES B
(TEARILET]) -

R-ZZE—N\F+A=-+=-8 ZBRLEE
F1%0.627% 709 BIELE 105,300,000 A% & A
5% & 11,700,000 R B R EE0.01 BT 2
f&fn - AR EBCEE R EE1TA $£ 117,000,000
ARAR 5 °
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Year ended 30 November 2018 &HZ=—ZT— \GF+—A=1tHILFE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24. AR aEZBMBEARRER

COMPANY
Pursuant to the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong RBEBEBRRGEHI 2 BERE - AAEH
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of BRAREEREEEESNOT :
the Company and the movements in its reserves are set out
below:
2018
—E-N\F
Note RM’000
Kzt BWF
Non-current assets REBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBARZEE 14 57
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 123X - T& 3 & E g U 5k 08 5
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITREER 30,536
30,541
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables FERHE R R E A B FRIE 7,122
Due to subsidiaries JE BT B R B FUE 617
7,739
Net current assets REBEEFE 22,802
NET ASSETS EEFE 22,859
Capital and reserves EXR#HE
Share capital [N 23 2,067
Reserves Ee] 24(a) 20,792
TOTAL EQUITY EEAE 22,859
* Represent amount less than RM1,000. *REREFEILREE1,0007T
The statement of financial position was approved and AR RR—_E—NFEF_A=-+HAHE
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 February EESHAERERETE  YHTIESRK
2019 and signed on its behalf by REE
Chong Yee Ping Liu Yan Chee James
FEN=DTS N
Director Director
E2 EE
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24.
COMPANY (continued)

(a)

Year ended 30 November 2(518 EE_‘T INEF— H +EIJJ:¢V

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Movements of the reserves

24. ARBZHBEARRFTE)

(a)

REZEH

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve loss
R4 RE BERfRE Gy
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
i3 BYTT F¥Fr FETT V-1 A
(Note 25(a))  (Note 25(b))
(Wit25(a) (W3t 25(b)
At 27 February 2018 “ZT-\f-A-t+H
(date of incorporation) (A B E) — - - —
Loss for the period and other A EARE 18 R AR
comprehensive loss for the Hit2EER
period — — (7,997) (7,997)
Transactions with owners:  SEEHARTZRE :
Contributions and HERSE
distributions
Issue of share capital under  BEEHETRA
the Reorganisation 23(iii) — 57 — 57
Capitalisation issue BALET 23(v) (1,447) — — (1,447)
Issue of new shares by ways ~ REERDHEER A%
of placing and public IERG
offer 23(vi) 35,487 - - 35,487
Transaction costs BAOMBROZEERS
attributable to issue of A1)
new shares (Note) (5,308) — — (5,308)
Total transactions with BEBAETZRS
owners k) 28,732 57 - 28,789
At 30 November 2018 RZZB-N\F
+-A=+8 28,732 57 (7,997) 20,792
Note: Certain listing expenses were borne by a subsidiary of Hiet - BT EmAXBAERRE—FHREAR

the Company without recharge.

Xt MZABABABXINZER
% o
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Year ended 30 November 2018 BZ T — \E+—A=+HILFE

25. RESERVES
(a) Share premium

It represents the excess of the net proceeds from
issuance of the Company’s shares over its par
value. Under the law of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s Articles of Association, it is distributable to
the Company’s shareholders provided that the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.
(b) Capital reserve

For the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group and the statement of financial position
of Company, it represents the aggregate amount of
the issued and paid-up share capital of the entities
now comprising the Group before completion of the
Reorganisation and the Company, respectively, less
consideration paid to acquire the relevant interests (if

any) upon completion of the Reorganisation.

During the years ended 30 November 2018 and 2017,
Excel Elite allotted and issued 3,890 and 10,000
ordinary shares to the Pre-IPO Investors and the ultimate
controlling parties at a consideration of HK$7,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RM3,710,000) and
US$10,000 (equivalent to approximately RM41,000),

respectively.

26. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i During the years ended 30 November 2018 and
2017, dividends of approximately RM14,000,000
and RM20,434,000, respectively, were settled
through current accounts with directors, who
are also the then shareholders of the entities

comprising the Group.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

25. f#fE

(a) RMRE
D B AR A BEITIRD 215
REFHERBLEAESD - REHA
EREFRRAQRZABERMA

Bl

MARBBRENE—RERBE

EPREEBIHNEXNEHEE

7 -

AIEAI DIk FARR AR

(b) EARHEHE

RAKREZGAPBRRREAR
RlZHBRREME » BEXFERED
AER TR EARRESEK AN EE
ZEBRARARZEHITREER
RABFER N T E AR B W R AE
BmeNREA) -

RBEE-_ZT—NER_T—+tF
+—A=+HIEFE ' Excel Elite

/'\

77

R LA ££ /& 7,000,000 7 7T (A8 7

#)55# 3,710,000 7T ) % 10,000 E 7T
(FHERL ¥ 41,0007T) A BE XA
FREEMIREE R KERS B %
K23%77 3,890 A& &2 10,000 & E3@A% ©

26. HMERERERZENER

(a) FEFREXRH

(i)

REBEE=-Z—N\FR-_ZT—+
¢+*ﬂ:+EIJJ:¢J§ BB
7 B 49 55 % 14,000,000 7T &
55 #20,434,000C © & B E
REEFMESINMN G MZEE
ENARERAEEERE ZER
ARER o
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HZ—ZT— N\E+—A=F+HILFE

26. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(a) Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(i)  During the year ended 30 November 2017,
the Group entered into sales and purchase
agreements with Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, a director
of the Company, in respect of two properties of
the Group at a loss of approximately RM252,000.
The sales proceeds with a total of approximately
RM943,000 was settled through current account
with the director.

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

Details of changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

financing activities are as follows:

Year ended 30 November 2018

=RE

(a)

(b)

RERBRZBINER ()

EBFRERH(F)

(i MBEZT—+tF+—A=+
Hti&y$%ﬂﬁ$An
CEEHRHEREITVER
M NAEBMIEREE
W% 2 BB A% 252,000
TC o SHE TS IBARBEA SR
943,000 T2 B BERKFE B
MZEEXNT -

MEETHEE2BBEHR

ﬁﬁkﬂﬁlﬂt :
BE-Z—\F+—A=+HLEE

Non-cash changes

¥5e2y

At 1 Declaration  Settlement At 30

December Cash of via  November

2017 flows dividends offsetting 2018

® i

ZE-tF EB —B-N\F

+=A-H ReRE EHES t-A=tH

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

V-1, 84 V-1, 84 V-1, 84 BRI V-1, 84

Interest-bearing borrowings GTEfEE 928 (34) - - 894

Obligations under finance leases REREEME 151 (21) - - 130

Due (from) to directors, net (BUR)ERESTETE (7,782) (5,938) 14,000 (280) -
Total liabilities from financing REEHEL AERE

activities (6,703) (5,993) 14,000 (280) 1,024
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26. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE 26. MEBREREXRZENER(E)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETHELZABYHIKRE)
activities (continued)

Year ended 30 November 2017 BE_T—tF+—A=1THILFE
Non-cash changes
FReEH
At 1 Declaration Settlement At 30
December of via November
2016 Cash flows dividends offsetting 2017
—E-RF g Rt -

+=A—-H BERE ERRE B#EEN +-A=tA
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Interest-bearing borrowings HERE 968 (40) = = 928
Obligations under finance leases BERERT 177 (26) = = 151
Due (from) to directors, net (B ENZEZFHEFE (607) (26,666) 20,434 (943) (7,782)
Total liabilities from financing MEEHEELE
activities 538 (26,732) 20,434 (943) (6,703)
27. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 27. BBARES

In addition to the transactions / information disclosed MEAVBERREMEOMBREIRS

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group BEIN  REEBBEUTEBEARS

had the following transactions with related parties:

(a) Transaction with a director of the Company (a) BEAXRDRFI-—BEZZRS
During the years ended 30 November 2018 and 2017, REE-Z—N\ER_F—+F+—
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang provided a rent-free property to the A=1+HIEE @ $itfrEEmaAasE
Group as office. The estimated total rent of the office EiIRH—ECHDEEANRAE - 1B
was approximately RM34,000 and RM103,000 based EHE—_ZE—-—N\E=A=+—HItHTE
on the market value for the four months period ended BALEEHE-—"ZE—+F+—A=+
31 March 2018 and the year ended 30 November 2017, HIFrEEzmE' ZHAZE 2G5t
respectively. On 20 March 2018, the Group entered into B S D B4 5 % 34,000 7T K& & #
a tenancy agreement with Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang to lease 103,000 - R=ZZE—N\F=H :—f—
the property commencing on 1 April 2018. For the year H @ NEBE BB LASII B -
ended 30 November 2018, the related operating lease —}\i@ﬂ—ﬁtfﬂ%Q%%%Z%ﬂ%
expense was approximately RM65,000 (2017: Nil). B - BE_ZE—\E+—AB=1+H

L HECERERTOATE
65,000 (= F—+4F - &) -
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|

27. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued)

28.

(b)

(c)

Remuneration for key management personnel
(including directors) of the Group:

27. BBLRS @)

(b) XEEFTEEEAS(BEES)2
N

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RM’000 RM’000
BT ST

Salaries, allowances and other e FRREMEYRER
benefits in kind 477 400

Contributions to defined TE R KA B 2 R

contribution schemes 37 36
514 436

Further details of the directors’ remuneration are set out

in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
Personal guarantees obtained

The ultimate controlling parties have provided unlimited
personal guarantees in respect of the interest-bearing
borrowings obtained by the Group from a bank in
Malaysia as set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements and no personal guarantee
was provided (2017: fixed deposit of approximately
RM500,000) in respect of the banking facilities on
issuance of bank guarantees granted by a bank in

Malaysia.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise due

from directors, interest-bearing borrowings, obligations under

finance leases, restricted bank balances and bank balances

and cash. The main purpose of these financial instruments is

to raise and maintain finance for the Group’s operations. The

Group has various other financial instruments such as trade

and other receivables / payables which arise directly from its

business activities.

28.

EXFME—TRHBEENGEAH
MR -

(c) EHBZEAER

AN AR & B 7% 3R 2 BT 720 AT &
SRERTERAEBE—FHE R
PR RTINS 2 5T B E IR AR IR
BAER BV EREEE—HS
REAERITHETRITHEAR DR
TERMBEL ZBITHEZBAAL
RZE—LF: EEGFHAEE
500,0007T) °

cREAREEEERBE

FEBZIESRIABRERKESN
HFEEERE BMEBEEEME XRHIR
TRENLRBITESRIEAS - ZFERT
AZTEZANANAKBEZEEEE R
Y% - AREREEEREARTEADE

EEAZEMBESRMTA  flIE 5 REMm
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management generally adopts conservative strategies on its
risk management and limits the Group’s exposure to these

risks to a minimum level as follows:
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial

statements.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit before income tax would
decrease / increase by approximately RM9,000 (2017:
approximately RM9,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk in existence at that date. The 100 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates

over the period until the next annual end of the report period.
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZ—Z— \F+—A=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on
their obligations to repay the amounts due to the Group,
resulting in a loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
mainly attributable to trade and other receivables, due from
directors, restricted bank balances and bank balances and
cash. The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by selecting
counterparties with reference to their past credit history
and / or market reputation. The Group’s maximum exposure to

credit risk is summarised as follows:

28.

..A

CREAREEEERBE#E)

FERR

EERBREEGABRERTEEREN
AEERRZEME  ERAKERZER
ZRR - ARBEZEERBREIZREES
REAEYIE - BBEEFOR - XRH
RITERARRITEHRRAE - AEEE
BUFIRG2EHRARFRLSER &
mIZBE  BUREKMAEZEERR -
AREMAEEAEERBRBANT -

2017

—T—tF

RM’000 RM’000

BE¥FT F&%FT

Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H AW IE 3,555 11,188
Due from directors R ESRIE — 7,782
Restricted bank balances SRR HIIRITAE B 525 762
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 33,784 2,777
37,864 22,509

The Group trades with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. The receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis by senior management and the Group’s exposure to

bad debts is not significant.

The management considers the credit risk in respect of
restricted bank balances and bank balances and cash is
minimal because the counter-parties are authorised financial

institutions with high credit ratings.

AEBEERAREERFZE=ZTHETR
5 BRURAGHBSRERESER
£ MAKEZZRERYTERX -

ERERR  FRAXRBIRITERARR
THRERRSZEERREN - IR
FHARBEREREMR AT EBEE -
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Year ended 30 November 2018 &HZ=—ZT— \GF+—A=1tHILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group closely monitors the credit limits granted to individual
customers and implements appropriate monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debtors at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the
Group considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as approximately 51.2% (2017:
43.2%) of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest trade debtor and approximately 90.4% (2017: 94.4%)
of the total trade receivables were due from the Group’s five

largest trade debtors.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Year ended 30 November 2018 B#Z —FT— A\F+—A=+THIFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 28. cRIEREEEERBEKE)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk RBELRR

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between REBZERARERESZRHBENRE)
continuity of funding and flexibility. The Group has no specific MMERZTE  ANEBEWELBERE
policy for managing its liquidity. The undiscounted contractual BERSHES MRBERRTEESRE
maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of &2 RBRIRE QB BN (IR A S E AL
the reporting period, based on the earliest date on which the B2 &FHB)BMET

Group is required to settle, is summarised as below:

Total
Total contractual On demand

carrying undiscounted  or less than

amount cash flow 1 year

FOR1E

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FETT FEFT V-1 200 FETT FEFT

At 30 November 2018 R=B-N5+-A=1H
Trade and other payables g5 REMEMFE 10,339 10,339 10,339 - -
Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) it SEE (#:) 894 894 894 - -
Obligations under finance leases ~ EAMEET 130 147 29 113 5
11,363 11,380 11,262 113 5

At 30 November 2017 RZE—+F+-A=+H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNFHIE 5,306 5,306 5,306 — —
Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) it SEE (#:7) 928 928 928 = —
Obligations under finance leases ~ BEAMEET 151 175 29 117 29
6,385 6,409 6,263 117 29
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Year ended 30 November 2018 HEZE =T — \F+—A=1+HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Note: The amounts repayable under bank loan agreement that include
a clause that gives the bank an unconditional right to call the
borrowings at any time are classified under the category of
“on demand or less than 1 year”. However, the management of
the Group does not expect that the bank would exercise such
right to demand the repayment and thus, the borrowings, which
included the related interest, would be repaid according to the
below schedule as set out in the bank loan agreement as follow:

28.

EREREEEERBE#E)

REBESERE)

Bat : RERITERBHRREEZFBDBARIE
BRI FIER - ZipERA R TR
SR RENIBE R B B R Z RSN o AT 0 A
SEEEERPRITE TN ETRAEENE
SIES - Bt - ZEE(BFERENS)HR
BRITERGHPTE THIRRERESR

Total
Total contractual
carrying undiscounted Less than 1to Over
amount cash flow 1 year 5 years 5 years
BB
BHRE
RELRE PME
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
B¥TT V-7 54 F¥Tr V-1 597 V-7 554
At 30 November 2018 R=B-N\E+-A=1H
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEMEE 894 1,315 79 316 920
At 30 November 2017 R=Z—tF+-A=+tA
Interest-bearing borrowings ATEfEE 928 1,394 79 316 999
Fair value AFEE

The carrying amount of the financial assets and liabilities
carried at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values due to the relative

short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for equity owners. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividends to equity owners, call for additional
capital from equity owners or sale of assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended 30 November 2018 and
2017.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30.

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases, which typically run for an initial period of 2-5 years.

None of the lease includes contingent rentals.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

lease, which are payable as follows:

REREAE

AEBRCLRENABESEYE -
BYSAM-SEE  BEREEERR
e -
R ok - AR E SN A e
FETA#BEREHARE  EIRE
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF

RM’000 RM’000

E¥TT BT

Within one year —FRA 124 —
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZENF(BEEEWSE) 104 —
228 —
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY ~ >
B #E =

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and Ty ABREERSTE= A REE 22 %S

liabilities of the Group for the last three financial years. The financial FEENRBBZHBE B2 _FT—\F+—A4
information for the year ended / as at 30 November 2018 is extracted =tHILEE NZBZHEER I Eira ANE
from the consolidated financial statements in this annual report while W2ZEUBBRE MBEE_T—R"FER-Z
the relevant information for the years ended / as at 30 November —+tF+—A=1+RHLFE WRZAZHEEEH
2016 and 2017 is extracted from the Prospectus. BIfsE B HERER o

Results of the Group for the year ended 30 November
AEBBET-—A=THLEEZ¥#E&

PLRE:] 2017 2016
—E-N\% = —EAE

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

BT SEFT -7

Revenue &= 47,581 38,929 13,986

Profit before taxation B %4 A% R 10,266 16,604 8,448

Income tax expenses EHEX (2,414) (71) (55)
Profit and total AEEBNREZEKE

comprehensive income for wE
the year 7,852 16,533 8,393
Assets and liabilities of the Group as at 30 November
AEEBRtT-—A=tHZEERERE

PLRE:] 2017 2016

=E-N\F —T—tF —TREF

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

F¥TT T HEFoT

Non-current assets kRBEE 1,707 2,119 3,551

Current assets REEE 44,032 23,789 9,296

Total assets WEE 45,739 25,908 12,847

Current liabilities REBAE 13,352 21,861 4913

Non-current liabilities kRBEE 115 136 163

Net assets BEEFE 32,272 3,911 7,771
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